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Strategic report

A further year
of progress

Begbies Traynor Group plc

is a leading business recovery,
financial advisory and property
services consultancy, providing
services nationally from a
comprehensive network

of UK locations through

two complementary

operating divisions.

Highlights of the year

Operational highlights

¥ Business recovery and financial advisory:

¥ [ncrease in revenue and profit whilst
investing in our team for future growth

s Developed advisory services through
the acquisition of Springboard Corporate
Finance and the launch of BTG Advisory

a1 Property services:

» Solid performance in the year with
growth in both revenue and profit

s Continuing to invest in the business
through recruitment and acquisition
of CJM Asset Management

» Strong cash generation reduced net
debt to its lowest level since 2007

3 Proposed 9% increase in total dividend
for the year, the first increase since 2011

For more on who we are and what we do
www.begbies-traynergroup.com
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Financial highlights®

Adjusted profit

Revenue before tax?

£52.4m £5.6m

(2017 £49 7m) (2017 £49m)

50.1 49.7 >%4 40 5.6
4.5 '

3

Profit before tax

£2.3m

(207 £06m)
2.3
Al figuras stated from
cortinuing onerauons
Profit pefore raq from contiruing
aperations of £2 3m (2017 £06m)
plus amort satior of Inrangible
A55€L5 ArISINg SN acquisitions 0 9
of £19m (2017 £2 5m)plus 06
rransaction costs of £1 4m
{2017 £16m}and refinancing
costs of Enil (2017 £0 2m) w ~ x©
& & &

Seereconcihaton it note 11
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Our business

Who we are
and what we do

Business recovery and financial advisory services

Revenue Segmental result
(2017 £36 Zm, (2017 £7 4m}

Begbies Traynor is the UK's leading independent BTG Advisory provides transactional support,
business recovery practice handling the largest valuations and advisory services.

number of corporate appointments, principally

serving the mid-market and smaller companies.

We provide these services to businesses, professional advisors, other stakeholders,
investors and financial institutions.

Insolvency - Corporate and Personal Financial Advisory

Corporate - procedures am to either rescue the business Services include
{where feasible) or realise the value of assets and distribute

o Financial consulting, incduding debt advisory,
avallable funds to creditors g g b

due diligence and valuations

N Administrations N Recelverships
Ao Corporate finance
N Liquidations § Crediors voluntary
4 ¥ N Forensic accounung and investigations
arrangements

b n r
Personal - provide advice to debtors and crediters on all -tgation support

aspects of personal nsolvency N Restructuring and turnaround
¥ Bankruptcy and individual ¥ Trust deeds and
voluntary arrangements sequestrations (Scotlang)

(England and Wales)

62 Beghies Traynor Group ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018



Property services
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Key performance indicators (KPIs)
How we have performed

The board uses the following KPIs to manage
the performance of the business:

Revenue Segmental result

£14.2m £3.1m

(2617 £13 5my (2017 £29m)

Eddisons is a national firm of chartered

surveyars, delivering advisory and transactional
services to owners and occupiers of commercial
property, investors and financial institutions.

The business includes Pugh & Co, the largest
regional firm of commercial property
auctioneers (by number of lots).

Advisory services

¥ Commercial property valuations

N Property receiverships

¥ Property management and accounting
N Bullging and project consultancy

N Property insurance and risk management

Transactional services

A Property auctioneers
A Machinery and business asset auctiongeers

A Commercial property agency

Adjusted profit
before tax

£5.6m

(2017 £49m)

Revenue

£52.4m

(2017 £497m)

50.1 49,7 224 45 5.6
a5 *

Net debt

£7.5m

Adjusted bhasic EPS

4.0p

(2017 3 3p) (2017 £103m)
4.0 104 10.3
32 33
7.5
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Chairman’s statement

A further year
of progress

F¥ tis pleasing to report a
further year of progress
in developing the group,
during which we have
continued to deliver
earnings growth."

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman
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Introduction

itis pleasing to report a further year of
progress in developing the group, during
which we have continued to deliver earnings
growth, reflecting the benefit of the strategic
investments we have made in recent years

Market levels of activity in insolvency were
broadly in line with the priar year, wath the
UK economy continuing to operate in the
low interest rate environment we have

been operating in since 2009 Against this
background, our business recovery and
financial advisory business grew its revenue
and profit We also increased our market
share, further strengthening our position as
the largest UK corporate appointment taker
by volume We have continued to invest in
this business through recruitment of senior,
waork-winning partners and staff

We have made further progress in devefoping
our advisory services In the year through
organic and acgursitive means We launched
BTG Advisory in the year to bring together
our restructuring, financial advisory,
corporate finance, forensic and investgation
teams, which are complementary to our
core business recovery practice and have
good growth potential

In hine with this, in March 2018 we acquired
Springboard Corporate Finance Springboard
1$ a tmghly regarded mid-market corporate
finance business operating from offices in
Birmingham, London and Nottingham We
will lock to continue to nvest and develop
our advisory services in the new financial year

Qur property services business also delivered
a sohd performance with growth in both
revenue and profit We have continued

to invest In the division through bath the
recruitment of senior fee earners and the
acquisition of CjM Asset Management

The group remains strongly cash generative,
which has enabled us to fund £1 9m of
acquisition and deferred consideration
payments wnilst conunuing to reduce the
group's net debt to £7 5m at 30 April 2018
(2017 £103m)



The group’s financial performance and
strong cash generation, combined with our
confidence in sustaining our recent earnings
growth, has led the board to recommend a
9% increase In the dividend for the year to
24pfrem 2 2p Following the increase inthe
dvidend paid at the interim stage, this is the
first annual dividend increase since 2011

Results

Group revenue from continuing operations
inthe year ended 30 Aprit 2018 was £52 4m
(2017 £497my Adjusted profit before tax’
increased to £5 6m (2017 £4 9my), benefitting
from improved contribution from both
business segments and lower nterest costs
Profit before tax was £2 2m (2017 £0 6m)
Statutory profit for the year was £1 4m
(2017 loss of £0 3m, ncluding loss from
discontinued operations of £0 5m)

Adjusted basic earnings per share? were 4 0p
{2017 3 3p) Basic and fully diluted earnings
per share from conunuiNg operations were
13p{2017 0 2p)

Net debt was £75m at 30 Apnl 2018
{2017 £10 3m), after making acquisition
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Dividend

The board I1s pleased to recommend (subject
to shareholder approval at the company's
annual general meeting) an ncreased
dividend for the yearto 2 4p (2017 2 2p),
an increase of 9% This comprises the interim
dividend already paid of 0 7p (2017 0 &p)
and a proposed final dividend of 17p
(2017 1 6p)

The board remains committed to a
long-term progressive dividend policy,
taking account of both the market outicok
and earnings growth

The final dividend will be paid on 8 November
2018 1o shareholders on the register on

12 October 2018, with an ex-dividend

date of 11 October 2018

People

fwould hike to thank all of our partners
and staff for their valued contribution to
the business during the course of this year
Our success remains reliant on quahty
advice and service being delivered to our
chents by our pecple

Outlook

The market for our counter-cychcal acuvities
remains stable and we continue to focus
on delivering future growth by investing

In the business

We anticipate continuing our track record
of earnings growth in the new financial year
wWith the benefit of a full year contribution
from the Springboard and CJM acquisitions
together with anticipated revenue growth
from our ongoing organic investments, our
expectations remain unchanged

Overali, we remainin a SUOﬁg positicn to
invest In further opportunities given our
financial resources, in line with our strategy
to grow both organically and through
selective acquisitions

As usual, we expect to provide a further
update on current trading at the tume

of the company’s annual general meeting
In September 2018

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

and deferred consideration payments in Board appointment 9 July 2018
the year of £19m This is the lowest year Mark Stupples was appointed to the
end net debt reported by the group since board as a non-executive director in July 2017
2007 Gearing® stocd at 13% (2017 18%) and Mark has significant property services
the group retains significant Neadroom N ayperence as a result of his senor roles
its commutted banking facilities Interest in major firms, including King Sturge as UK
cover-was 12 6 umes {2017 72 umes) managing partner, when he negotiated the
sale of the businessto JLL Following the
acquisition, Mark was appomted as JLLs UK
chief operating officer unul leaving the
business in December 2016 During this tme,
he completed a number of UK acquisitions
The board now comprises three executive
and three non-executive directors
1 Peofreeforo tax from cannn ng aperatns of £2 20 12017 £0 &m) plus amartisatinn of nrtargible avests g, rg o arguisis ors 272 9m2M7 22 Ly

pdus transaction costs of £14m {2017 £ Avjard et nanarg costs of EnIl (70 7 E0 2}

2 Seersconchaten e nate 1

3 Talculates as pardebd g noed by ret assets

4 Cabeularent gy operatrg rrofitt lore amoeisanon s ransart or tost- diveed oy nleresr costs
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Our strategy

» To be recognised as a v Business restructuring 3 UK businesses
Iead!ng profesional c and insolvency v Financial institutions
services consuitancy = u Transactional support v and the investment
delivering: @ o communit

E ~» business recover = ¥ Valuations and g Y
— A . - . . .
o Y g_ advisory services 8w Professional advisors
- ¥ financial advisory, and . .
S ] y ﬁ sy Commercial property £ » Commercial property
¥ property advisory = services 2 owners and occupiers
services. = (W] .
2 » Individuals
Why invest

3 Begbies Traynor Group plc listed on AIM in 2004

s We are a leading business recovery, financial advisory and property services consultancy with
over 570 staff and partners operating across the UK

s As the UK's leading independent business recovery practice, we handle the largest number
of corporate appointments, principally serving the mid-market and smaller companies

» Over 65% of the group’s activities are derived from counter-cyclical activities

» Our complementary financial advisory and property services activities provide diversified
income streams

x We have growth potential across all the group’s service lines
» Our board has a progressive dividend policy
3 We have developed a strong financial track record

06
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Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

Nick Taylor
Group finance director

Business recovery
and financial advisory

Insolvency market

The insolvency Service issues quarterly
statistics on the number of corporate
insolvencies in England and Wales The
underlying number of corporate insolvencies!
incalendar year 2017 was broadly unchanged
ar 14,668 {2016 14,716)

Excluding the effect of bulk insolvencies, the
underlying number of corporate insolvenaes
rose in the first calendar quarter of 2018

to 3,987, a 13 0% increase on the previcus
quarter and a 0 6% increase on the same
quarter in 2017 Although this 1s the highest
level of corporate insolvencies since the first
quarter of calendar year 2014, any sustained
increase 1s likely to be as aresult of either a
marked change In interest rates or a change
N the economic envirgnment

Financial performance

in the bernign corporate environment noted
above, we have invested in our team, which
has increased our market share in our core
business recovery practice, whilst also
developing our advisory capabihities,
principally through acquisition

As aresult of these imtiatives, together with
success fees received on the completion of
contingent insalvency cases, revenue in the
yearincreased to £38 3m (2017 £36 2m)
Operating costs increased to £30 7m

{2017 £28 9m), due to the investment
noted above and increased people costs,
giving an increase in segmental profits’

o £76m (2017 £74m) As aresult of the
investrment in the year, our operating
margins decreased shightly tc 19 8%

{2017 20 3%), which we anticipate will
recover In future years as we generate
areturn on the investments we have made

1 Source Trelrsclvency Service uuarterly statis s
ar A seo3sanaglly ad ustes bass, excluding the o ne-orf
effectof 2682 (2017 . 703) bulk insulences 35
identfie 1 by the Insolvenc, Service

2o heenote L

The investrment in the business recovery team
has mvolved the recruitment of expertenced,
market-facing insolvency staff, together
with enhancing our business development
capabilities As aresult of these initiatives,
in spite of the overall number of appaintments
being broadly unchanged, we have increased
our market share and remain the teading
corporate appointment taker 1n the UK

by volurme Wa have alsc undertaken some
larger contingent fee work during the year

We have continued to develop our
advisory services in the year and launched
BTG Advisory, which brings together our
restructuning, financial advisory, corporate
finance, forensic and invesuigation teams
to operate as one natonal team

in March 2018 we acquired Springboard
Corporate Finance, a highly regarded
mid-market corporate finance team, which
1S complementary to our other advisory
services Springboard cperates from offices
In Birmingham, London and Nottingham and
its team af 13 empioyees and management
joined the group on acquisition The practice
has strong relaticnships with owner-managers,
management teams and private equity firms,
acting across a broad range of buy and sell
stde private company transactions

Springboard's management team will be
responsible for the ongoing management
and development of the group's corporate
finance services, and we beleve that the
integration of the Springboard team with
our existing advisory offerings provides a
strong platform for further growth We will
look to continue to invest and develop our
advisory services In the new financial year

The number of people employed in the
division has increased to 351 as at 30 April
2018 from 337 at the start of the financial year
We have continued to develop our team and
are pleased to have promated four fee earners
to partner during the year We retain the
capacity to deliver growth in revenue and
profits from our exisung team in the event
of anincrease in activity levels

Property services

Revenue increased to £14 2m (2017 £15 5m}
with an increase in segmental profits? to
£31m (2017 £2 9m) Operating margins
increased to 22 1% (2017 21 6%)

We have continued to develop the dmsicn
during the year through organic investment
and acquisiticn We have invested in our
property valuation team through the
recruitment of expenenced surveyors and
enhanced our bulding consultancy offering
to the education sector, where we have
achieved increased levels of instructions
over the last 12 months

Cur machinery and business asset disposal
team has performed well, working alongside
Beghbies Traynor teams on a number of
insolvency engagements, and was also
strengthened through cur acguisition of
CjM Asset Management in February 2018
CIM specialises in the sale of industrial
plant and machinery assets through its
onfine platform, physical auction centre
and private treaty sales The t1-strong team,
including management, have been integrated
with the existing Eddisons machinery and
husiness asset disposal team

We also recruited a new team in Liverpool,
providing valuation and agency services
operating from the group’s existing office

These growth areas have offset a reduction in
cornmercial property auction levels, as aresult
of a quieter commercial auction environment,
together with lower fevels of property
insolvency activity foitowing the completion
of several long-runming appontrments

The number of people employed In
the division has increased to 182 as
at 30 April 2018 from 170 at the start
of the finanaial year

Partners and employees

As at 30 Apnil 2018, the group employed

a total of 576 partners and staff (2017 545),
this comprises 427 fee earners and 149
support staff

Annual Report and Accounts 2018 Beghies Traynor Group plc 07
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Finance review

Financial summary

2018 2017

£000 £000
Revenue from continuing operations 52.441 49,685
Operating profit {before transaction costs and amortisation) 6,059 5,627
[nterest costs (482) (776)
Adjusted profit before tax 5,577 4,851
Refinancing costs — (225)
Transaction costs (1,364) (1.545)
Amortisation of intangible assets arising on acquIsiiions {1,917) (2,439}
Profit before tax 2,296 642
Tax (872) 429)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,424 213

Revenue

Revenue increased by 6% to £52 4m

(2017 £4%7m)in the year as result of our
nvestments and organic growth intiatrzes
Business recovery and financial adwisory
activities contnbuted £2 1m of this increase
and property services revenue Increased
by £07m

Acquisitions In the year contributed £0 6m
of revenue

Operating profit

{(before transaction

costs and amaortisation)
Operating profit {pefore transaction costs
and amortisation} increased to £6 1m
(2017 £5 &m)with cperating margins
of 11 6% (2017 11 3%)

Interest costs

Interest costs reduced to £0 5m (2017 £0 8m,

as a result of the group’s reduced borrowing
costs following the refinancng in the
previous year

Refinancing costs

One-off costs incurred In connection

with the refinancing of the group's banking
facihities in the prior year were £0 2m

Transaction costs
Transaction costs in the year of £1 4m
(2017 £1 5mj comprise

¥ acguisition costs of £01m (2017 £071m),

¥ deemed remuneration charges
of £17m (2017 £14m),

T See reanahat or ante |

¥ g charge relating to the put and call
option over Begbies Traynor {London) LLP
of £0 8m (2017 £0 3my), offset by

¥ gamn on acquisitions of £1 2m
(2017 £0 3m)

Amortisation of intangible
assets arising on acquisitions
Amortisation costs decreased to £19m
(2017 £2 4m)

Tax

The overall tax charge for the year

from continuing operaticns was £0 9m
(2017 £04m), comprising a tax charge

on adjusted profit before tax of £1 3m
(2017 £1 3m), partially offset by a tax credit
resulting from amorusation, refinancing
and transaction costs of £0 4m (2017 £09m}

The adjusted tax rate reduced to 22%
(2017 27%) as a result of increased
accounting profits with a lower level of non
tax-deductibie costs, a 1% reduction in the
UK corperation tax rate and an adjustment
in relation to prior year provisions

The statutory tax rate reduced to 38%
(2017 67%) due to the lower adjusted

tax rate, as noted above, together with

an adjustment to deferred tax balances
in the prior year relating to future enacted
changes in UK tax rates

Earnings per share ('EPS’)
Adjusted basic earnings per share' were
4 0p (2017 3 3p) Basic and fully diluted
earmings per share were 1 3p (2017 0 2p)

Basic and fully dituted earnings
pershare were 1 3p (2017 02m

08 Beghies Traynor Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Acquisitions

Springboard Corporate Finance
On 6 March 2018, the group acquired the
entire 1ssued share capital of Springboard
Corporate Finance Limited for an initial net
consideration of £2 75m (on a cash free, debt
free basis), satisfied by £1 375m in cash and
through the 1ssue of 1,884,568 new ordinary
shares of 5 pence each in the group

Under the terms of the acquisiuon, additional
contingent consideration of up to £6 5mwill
become payable subject to the achieverment
of financial targets in the five year period
directly following completion The contingent
consideration Is calculated according to an
agreed formula and is payable in cash

Gross potential consideration of £4 5m
comprises the £2 75m initial net consideration,
£0 5m conungent consigeration and £1 28m
cash payment in relation to cash at completion
and working capital adjustments

A proportion of the consideration payable
for this acquisition reguires post-acquisition
service obligations tc be performed by the
selling shareholders These amounts are
treated as deemed remuneration and
charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income over the period
of the obligation

As a result of this accounting treatment,
the value of net assets acquired (£2 8m}
exceeds the accounting value of the
consideration (£2 Omj} and consequently
a gain of £0 8m has been recognised
within transaction costs in the year

Overall, the business has performed in line
with expectations In the post-acquisition
period and the integration with our
adwvisory team Is progressing well



CJM Asset Management

0On 5 February 2018 the group

acquired the entire 1ssued share capital
of Fyrebrand Limited, which traded as
CiM Asset Management (“CJM™, for an
initial net consideration of £0 25m (on a
cash free, debt free basis), satisfied by
£015min cash and through the 1ssue of
134,462 new ordinary shares of 5 pance
each inthe group

Under the terms of the acquisition,
additional contingent consideration of up
to £0 25m will become payable subject to
the achievement of financial targets for
the consoldated machinery and business
asset disposal business {representing the
pre-existing Eddisons business merged
with (JM) 1n the three year period directly
following completion Any additional
consideration s calculated according to
an agreed formula and 1s payable i cash

The consideration payable for this acquisition
requires post-acquisiion service obligations
to be performed by the selling shareholders
These amounts are treated as deemed
remuneraticn and charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over
the period of the obligation

As aresult of this accounung treatment,
the value of net assets acquired (£0 3m)
axceeds the accounting value of the
consideration (£nil) and consequently a
gain of £0 3m has been recogrsed within
transaction €osis In the year

The business has performed in {ine with
expectations in the post-acquisition period
and the team has been integrated with cur
existing business asset disposal team

Other

On 5 October 2017 we acquired a portfolio
of insclvency cases from the hguidators

of Invocas Financal Lirmited for a total
consideration of £40,000

Cash flows

Cash generated by operabions {before
Interest and tax payments) in the year was
£91m (2017 £8 Om) Tax payments in the
year were £10m (2017 £1 5m} interest
payments were £0 6m (2017 £09m)

Cash outflows from investing activities were
£24m (2017 £3 2m) Capital expenditure
was £0 5m (2017 £0 3m) Deferred payments
relating to prior year acguisitions were
£1Im (2017 £11m) Acquisition payments
(net of cash acquired of £2 0m) were £0 8m
(2017 £18m)

1 lalcalated as net debt arnded oy ret assets
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Financing cash outflows were £8 3m
(2017 £3 3m) During the year we reduced
the level of drawn debt under our banking
faciities by £6 0m {2017 £10m) Dividend
payments were £2 4m (2017 £2 3m)

Financing

The group's borrowing facilities are
unsecured, mature on 31 August 2021
and comprise a £25m committed revolving
credit faclity and a £5m uncommitted
acquisition facibty

Net borrowings reduced to £7 5m at

30 Aprii 2018 (2017 £10 3m), with gearing
of 13% (2017 18%) and significant headroom
within the committed banking facilities
During the year, all bank covenants were
comfortably met and the group remans in
a strong financial position Interest cover?
was 12 btimes (2017 7 2 umes}

Net assets
AL 30 April 2018 net assets were £591m
(2017 £581m)

Non-current assets increased to £62 3m
{2017 £600m), due to Intangible assets
recognised on acguisitions and capital
expenditure in the year, together with
deemed remuneration relaung to periods
in excess of one year of £1 8m {2017 £nil)
arising from acquisitions in the year

Trade and other recervables were £30 8m
(2017 £29 8m) This balance comprises
trade debtors of £57m {2017 £5 4m),
unbilled income of £217m (2017 £20 8m),
other debtors and prepayments of £21m
(2017 £2 9m), and deemed remuneration
of £13m (2017 £07m)

Net borrowings reduced to £75m
(2017 £103m)

Trade and other payables were £18 4m
(2017 £13 9m} The balance comprises
trade creditors of £14m {2017 £12m),
accruals of £6 9m (2017 £4 5m), tax and

social secunty creditors of £2 3m (2017 £2 4m),

deferred income of £1 8m (2017 £2 O0m),
other creditors of £4 3m (2017 £31m), and
deemed remuneration liabiities of £1 7m
(2017 £0/myof which £0 6m {2017 £0 4m)
Is payabie within one year

* Calcalared as oneratrg or o thefore amortisar 20 100 Larsacrt or 2055 dviged Ly 1Herest costs

Current tax liabilities were £1 5m
(2017 £0 8m) Net deferred tax habilities
were £54m (2017 £54m)

Provistons for property costs and
post-disposal obligations total £1 2m
(2017 £1 2m) of which £0 8Bm 1s payable
within one year

Going concern

The directars have reviewed the financial
rescurces avallable to the group and have
concluded that the group will be able to
operate within the level of its torrowing
facihities and have a reasonable expectauon
that the group has adeguate resources tg
continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future This conclusion Is based,
amongst other matters, on the group's
existing borrowing facthties and a review
of financal forecasts for a period exceeding
12 months from the date of this
announcemant Accordingly, the financial
information i this announcement 1
prepared on the going concern basis
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The operations of the group and the implementation of the group’s strategy invelve a number of nsks and uncertainties, the principal

of which are described in the table below

Controls to reduce risk are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk and can only pravide reascnable and not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss

Risk
Marketplace

The group's markets are susceptible to macrceconomic
movements, such as interast rates, GOP changes and
indebtedness levels The group operates in a highly competitive
market and Is reliant on the flow of new assignments

Operational gearing

The business 1s operationally geared with a high proportion

of salary and property costs, which cannot be immediately varied
Consaquently. the group's profitability 15 hable to short-term
fluctuations dependent on actwity levels

Reliance on key personnel

The business 1s dependent upon the professional development,
recruitrnent and retention of high quality professianal partners
and staff

Legal and regulation

The group operates in regulated markets Falure 1o comply with
or changes in regulation or legisiation may have an adverse impact
on the activities of the business

Mitigating activities

Thus nisk 1s managed through a consistent effort in marketing and selling
actraty and maintaining strong relationships with key work providers, including
financial Institutions, investors and cther professional intermediaries

This nsk 1s managed through flexing our resource levels, where possible, to
align wath current and anticipated levels of actrity, together with the controf
of ather discrenonary items of expenditure A prudent level of spare capacity
1s retamned to facilitate peaks in activity

The group manages the nsk of high staff turnover through attention to
hurnan resource issuas and the monitoring of remuneration levels agamst
the wider market, ncluding long-term incentive arrangements

To ensure compliance with relevant legislauon in performing regulated
activities, the group has dedicated compliance functions which maintain
procedures and policies in ine wiath current legistation

In the ordmary course of business, certain aspects of the group's
seraces are opimon-based and may be subject to challenge

Liquidity risk

The group's ability to generate cash from its insolvency appomntments
15 usually reliant on asset realisations A detencration in realisations in
the short term could reduce the group's operating cash generation
and increase its finanaing requirements

Failure or interruption in IT systems

Amajor failure in the group's IT systems may result in either a loss
or corruption of data or an nterruption In chent service, which may
have a consequential impact on our reputation and profitability

There 1s a nsk that an attack on our IT systems by a malicious
individual or group may be successful and impact on the
avallability of these systems

Where appropriate, the group will seek third-party professional corroboration
In additton, the group has appropnate professional indemnity Insurance

Tre group monitors is risk of a shortage in funds through regular cash
management and forecasting and ensuring suitable headroorm within its
banking faclities

The group's objective Is to maintain & balance between continurty of funding and
flexibility through the use of ts committed banking facilities, together with bank
overdrafts and loans, finance leases and hire purchase contracts if required

Specific off-site back up and resiience requirements have been built into our
{T systems which have been set up, as far as reasonably practicable, to prevent
unauthornised access and mitigate the impact and hkelhood of a major IT fallure
or cyber attack

The group has disaster recovery plans in place to cover residual nisks which
cannot be mitigated

The group 1s constantly reviewing its processes and resihence in this area due
to the increasing threat landscape

Going concern

Disclosures are presented in note 2 to the financial statements around the basis on which the directors have continued to adopt the

going concern basis in preparing these financial statements

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor
Executive chairman Group finance director
9 july 2018 9July 2018
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Board of directors

Strategic report

Corporate governance Financiak statements

RIC TRAYNOR (age 58)
Executive chairman

Appeointment date: May 2004

Experience

Ric has been an insolvency pracutioner
since qualifying as a chartered accountant
with Arthur Andersen in 1984 He established
Traynor & Co 1n 1289 which, following the
acqguisition of Begbies London in 1997,
becarne Beghbies Traynor

Ric has focussed on the development of the
business, including the group's successful
introduction to AIMin 2004, and on practice
management He continues to lead the
business and remains a major shareholder

NICK TAYLOR (age 47)
Group finance director

Appocintment date: December 2010

Experience

Nick was appointed as group finance
director In 2010, having joined the group as
financial controfler in 2007 He s a chartered
accountant who qualitred with KPMG and
previously held senjor finance roles 1n
United Utilities PLC ang Vertex Data Science
Limited, the business process ocutsourcar

MARK FRY {age 50)
Head of business recovery and advisory

Appointment date: July 2011

Experience

Mark was appointed to the beard in 2011,
having joined the group in 2005 following
an acquisiticn He led our London and
South East region prior to his board
appomtment and plays a key role in
developing the group’s advisory practice

Mark acts as an Insglvency practitioner,
has been appointed on numerous complex
and high-profile assignments, and i5 a
former president of the Insolvency
Practitioners Association

JOHN MAY (age 63)
Non-executive director

Appointment date: October 2007

Experience

John was appointed to the board in 2007
as a non-executive director He s also the
independent chairman of the ARl Group
John was an executive director of Caledoma
Investmenits pic and previously worked for
the Hambros Group for over 20 years, where
he was an executive director of Hambros
Bank and joint managing director

of Hambre Countrywide

GRAHAM MCINNES (age 66)
Non-executive director

Appcintment date: September 2004

Experience

Graham was appomnted Lo the

board in 2004, initally as group finance
director and subsequently as corporate
development director In 2012, Graham
became a non-executive director He has
held a number of senior finance pasitions
inclucing corporate finance partner at
Spicer and Oppenheim {now part of Delotte)
and finance director of Enterprise plc, in
additon to developing his own corporate
finance boutique in the 19905

MARK STUPPLES (age 56)
Non-executive director

Appointment date: July 2017

Experience

Mark was appointed to the board 1n 2017
as a non-exacutive director He has significant
property services experience as a resuit of
hus semor roles in major firms, inclucing
King Sturge as UK managing partner, when
he negotiated the sale of the business to
JLL Following the acquisition, Mark was
appointed as JLUs UK chief cperating officer
until leaving the business in December 2016
Dunng this time, he completed a number of
UK acquisitions
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Corporate governance

Directors’ report

The directors present their Annual Repart
on the affairs of the group, together with
the financial statements and auditor’s
report for the year ended 30 April 2018
The chairman’s statement, directors’
remuneration report and corporate
governance statement form part of the
directors' report and are incorporated
into it by cross reference

Directors
The names and brief biographical details
of the directors are shown on page 11

Pividends

The directors recommend a final dividend
of 17 pence 2017 1 6 pence per ordinary
share to be paid on 8 November 2018 t¢
shareholders on the register at 12 Qctober
2018 This, together with the interm
dmvidend of 07 pence paid on 10 May 2018
(2017 06 pence), makes a total dvidend of
2 4 pence for the year (2017 2 2 pence)

Substantial shareholdings

Financial instruments
The financial risk management objectives and
policies of the group are shown in note 19

Capital structure

Detalls of the 1ssued share capital, together
with detaiis of the movements in share capital
during the year, are shown in note 20

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled
persons are always fully considered, bearing
in ming the aptitudes of the applcant
concerned In the event of members of staff
becoming disabled, every effort 1s made (o
ensure that their employment with the group
continues and that appropriate trainmg 1s
arranged Itis the policy of the group that the
training, career development and promotion
of disabled persons should, as far as possible,
be identical to that of other employees

On 4 July 2018, the company had been notified, In accardance with sections 797 to 828
of the Companies Act 2006, of the following interests in the ordinary share capital of

the company

Percentage
Name of holder Numbper reld
Hof Hoorneman Bankiers 12,254,527 1110
Fidehty Worldwide investment 10,619,436 g 32
Insinger Gilissen 7.332,614 664
Close Brothers Asset Management 5,284,613 479
Allianz Global Investors 4,249,510 385

Other than the above holdings and those of the directors (see page 15;, the board 1s not
aware of any beneficial holdings in excess of 3% of the 1ssued share capital of the company
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Social policies and
employee invelvement

The policy of the group s to recrui,
promote, train and develop its people
by reference to their skills, abilities and
other attributes of value to their role in
the business The group considers itself
to be an equal oppertunities employer
Employee engagement Is encouraged
through a variety of means including
corparate Intranets, team meatngs
and regular dialogue with employees

The activities of the group have 2

minimal pollution impact on the environment
and its energy consumption 15 modest
Due consideration to environmentai 1ssues
1s given where appointed Insclvency
administrators take control of third-party
businesses in the course of theirr work

Auditor
Each of the directors at the date of approval
of this Annual Report confirms that

u 5o far as the director s aware, there s
no relevant audit information of which
the company’s auditor 1s unaware, and

N the director has taken all the steps
that he ocught to have taken as a director
in order to make himself aware of any
relevant audit information and to estabhsh
that the company’s auditor 1s aware
of that information

This confirmation s given and should be
Interpreted in accordance with the provisions
of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

BDO LLP have expressed their willingness to
continue in office as audrtor and a resclution
to reappoint them as auditors will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting

Approved by the board of directors and signed
on behalf of the board

John Humphrey
Company secretary
2 july 2018



Strategic report

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing
the annual report and the financal
staternents in accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to
prepare financial statements for each
financial year Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the group financial
staterments in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and the
company financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice {United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law)
Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unfess
they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the group
and company and of the profit or loss of the
group for that period The directors are also
required to prepare financial statements in
accordance with the rules of the London
Stock Exchange for companies trading
securities on AlM

In preparing these financial statements,
the directors are required to

o select suitable accounting pohicies
and then apply them consistently,

s make Judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent,

N state whether they have been prepared
inaccordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
Furopean Union, subject 1o any material
departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements, and

M prepare the financial statements
on the going concern basis unless it
Is Inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any bime the financial position
of the company and enable them to ensure
that the finanaal statements comply with
the requirerments of the Companies Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

Website publication

The directors are responsible for ensuring the
annual report and the financial statements
are made available on a website Financial
statements are published on the company's
website in accordance with legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation
and disseminatian of fiinancial statements,
which may vary from legislation in other
Jurnisdictions The maintenance and integrity
of the company's website 1s the responsibility
of the directors The directors’ responsibility
also extends 1o the ongoing integrity of the
financial statements contained theremn
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Corporate governance

Directors’ remuneration report

The company 1s not abliged to prepare a directors' remuneration report and the information below does not constitute 3 ‘directors’
remuneration report’ within the mearing of the Companies Act 2006

The remuneration committee

The remuneration committee compnses of two non-executive directors and s chaired by John May The executive chairman is invited to
attend for discussion on execulive remuneration matters save for those refating to himself Under its terms of reference, the committee
determines the profit shares, remuneration and bonuses payable to the executive directors The committee meets annually to agree the
executive directors’ base remuneration for the ensuing year, together with any bonus entitlement

Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration arrangements for Ric Traynor and Nick Taylor consist of basic salary or directors’ fees and fixed profic share, together
with an annual bonus In addition, they receve income protechion insurance, private medical insurance and the provision of a company
car or cash allowance Nick Taylor also receives death in service benefits

The executive bonus scheme, which 1s applicable to Ric Traynor and Nick Taylor, pays a multipte of salary/fixed profit share based on
maintaimning or growing the group's adjusted earnings per share

Mark Fry is an equity member of Begbies Traynor (London) LLP ("the LLP"}, a subsidiary of the groug i which the group has a controlling
interest He receves a fully variable profit share, determined as a proporuon of the profits of the LLP In addition Mark Fry recerses directors’
fees and the provision of a company car

Some of the executive directors participate 1n the group's share based incentive schemes, detailed on page 15 Nong of the directors
participate in the group’s defined contribution pension scheme

Non-executive directors’ remuneration is determined by the board

Directors’ emoluments

Direciors' fees

and profit Variable Bensfits 2018 2017
share‘salary profit share Bonus 10 kird total total
Name of director £ c £ £ £ £
Executive
Ric Traynor 327911 — 225,000 20,826 573,737 407,683
Nick Taylor 200,000 — 95,000 1,072 296,072 225,854
Mark Fry 15,000 639,879 — 30,000 684,979 682,077
Non-executive
John May 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000
Graham Mclnnes 40,000 - — — 40,000 40,000
Mark Stupples (appointed 11 July 2017) 32,290 — — — 32,290 —
Aggregate emoluments 655,201 639,979 320,000 51,898 1,667,078 1,385,614
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Strategic report Corporate governance Financial statements

Directors’ share options
Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do notinclude any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the company
granted ta or held by the directors Details of share option awards for directors who served during the year are as follows

Exercise

Name Number at Granted Exercised Expired Number at price Farhesi Expiry
of director © May 2017 in gear 1 year nyear 30 April 2018 (penre) =xercise date date
Mark Fry 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 367 30 April 2016 25 Getober 2023
Nick Taylor 50,000 — — {50,000) —_ 618 15 July 2013 15 July 2017
500,000 — {375,000) — 125,000 367 30 Aprd 2016 25 October 2023

250,000 — — — 250,000 510 25 fuly 2017 25 July 2024

— 500,000 - — 500,000 631 371 October 2020 31 October 2028

The market price of the company's shares at the end of the financial year was 70 pence and the range of market prices during the year
was 48 pence to /7 pence

Details of share options granted by the company at 30 April 2018 are given In note 21 None of the terms and conditions of the share
options were varied in the year Gains on options exercised In the year were £80,3850

Directors’ interests
The directors who held office at 30 April 2018 had the following interests in the shares of the group

30 April 2018 1 May 2017
Marme of director Jescripton of shares number % nLmber %
Ric Traynor Ordinary shares 27178,980 24.68 27178980 2547
Nick Taylor Ordinary shares 80,798 0.07 5,000 00
Mark Fry Ordinary shares 127,466 0.12 143,890 013
Jjohn May Ordinary shares 276,574 0.25 276,574 026
Graham Mdnnes Ordinary shares 917,432 0.83 917,432 086

Mark Stupples Ordinary shares —_ —_ - —

1 Asatdate of spooirrment on 11 July 2017

No changes took place In the interests of directors between 30 April 2018 and 9 July 2018

Begbies Traynor {(London) LLP option

There 15 a put and call optionin place for the group to acquire Mark Fry's interest in Begbres Traynor (London) LLP duning a three month pernod
after 30 September 2019 at an agreed profit muluple or, alternatively for a nominal value in the event that a base level of profitability 1s not
achieved over the penod Inthe event of significant growth in the LLP's profits, the consideration for exercising the option 15 capped at £4m

For consideration of up to £1m this must be made in cash In the event that the consideration payable exceeds £1m, then at the group's
discretion the payment can be made through a combination of cash and ordinary shares, subject to the following conditions a rmimmum
cash element of £1/m and in the event of the total payment exceeding £2m a minimum of 50% of the total consideration being in cash

The option has replaced any right for Mark Fry to participate in any future awards under the group's directors’ share options and growth
share plans In the event that the opuon 15 exercised for anything other than nominal consideration then there s an additional contractual
commutment for Mark Fry to remain with the group for a mimmum of a further two years

The anticipated hability to the group under this option is calculated In accordance with the group’s accounting policy for business
combinations (note 2¢) and 13 charged to the consoiidated statement of comprehensive INncome as a transaction cost as disclosed innote 6
to the financial statements The charge in the current financial year was £0 8m (2017 £6 3m) with a hability of £1 Tm recognised at

30 April 2018 This charge 1s excluded from the aggregate emoluments disclosed above
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Corporate governance

Corporate governance statement

The board 15 committed to high standards
of corporate governance Detailed below
are the key components of the group’s
current corporate governance policies
and procedures which, where appropriate
to the group, comply with the corporate
governance gurdelines for small and
mid-size quoted companies published

by the Quoted Companies Allance

Board composition

The board cansists of the executive
chairman, two executive directors and
three non-executive directors

The executive chairman is responsible for
the workings and teadership of the board
together with managing the business with
the support of the other executive directors

The executive directors are Ric Traynor,
executive chairman, Nick Taylor, group
finance director, and Mark Fry, head of
business recovery and advisary The
independent non-executive directors
are Graham Mclnnes, john May and

Mark Stupples The board considers

that the non-executive directors are
independent of management and have no
husiness ar other relationship which could
interfere materially with the exercise of
thelr judgement

Graham Mclnnes 1s the senior
independent director

All directors have access to the company
secretary and all group records Each
director 1s authorised 1¢ take external
advice at the expense of the company

in support of his duties

The board's responsibility is to provide
overall leadership and oversee the
performance and successful strategic
development of the group as well as setting
and monitoring the professional standards
and values which its divisions and
stakeholders demand, together with
overseeing the nternal controf and risk
managemernt of the group In the absence
of a formal nominations committee the
board 15 responsible for ensuring that it
retains appropsiate composition and
balance of skilis and expertse as well as
considenng relevant succession

Day-to-day operational management of the
group's respective divisions is delegated by
the board to two prinapal eperating boards
{business recavery and advisory services
and property services) which comprnise of
relevant members of the group’s executive
team and include senior partners and
managers from the respéectuve divisions

The full board meets formaily on a quarterly
basis and informally where relevant
throughout the year Relevant executive
directors sit on and attend the reguiar
aperational board meetings for the group's
two operating divisions Agendas for these
meetings formalise the matters reserved for
decision by the respective boards with papers
arculated in advance for consideration and
comment Meetings are structured to aliow
for the open discussion and debate of the
key issues

Committees of the board

The board has delegated certamn
respansibilines to two committees, each
of which has written terms of reference
The minutes of the committees are
arculated to and reviewed by the board

The audit committee

The audit commitiee comprises two
non-executive directors and is chaired by
Graham Mclnnes The executive chairman, the
group finance director and a representative of
the group's external auditors are permitted to
attend meetings of the committee by invitation
only The committee meets at least three
times a year, In accordance vathits terms of
reference The committee's role (s tG review
and discuss governance, financial reporting
and internal control and risk management

The remuneration committee
The remuneration committee Comprises
two non-executive directors and 1$ chaired
by John May The executive chairman s
invited to attend for discussion on
executive remuneration matters save for
those relating to himself The principal role
of the committee is to be responsible for
all efements of the remuneration of the
executive directors as well as supporung
the board in setting and designing its
polces gaverning staff remuneranon

The committee performs its functions

N accordance with its terms of reference,
meeting at least twice a year Additional
nformation 1s included 10 rhe directors’
rermuneration report on pages 14 and 15
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Investor communications
Meetings with institutional shareholders
and analysts take place throughout the year
and all shareholders are free to contact any
member of the board at any time The
executive chairman and group finance
director have primary responsibiity for
investor relations and tead the regular
programme of presentations and meetings
The senior independent director is also
avatlable to meet shareholders If required
and provides an afternative contact point
for shareholders Shareholders have a
formal opportunity to question the board
at the annual general meeting of the company,
at the conclusion of which all board members
are avallable for informal discussion

Internal control and

risk management

The systems of internal control and risk
management are the responsibility of the
board, which sets and reviews appropriate
policies Managers are delegated the tasks
of implementation and maintenance of
systems in accordance with those policies
and the identification, evaluation,
management and reporting of risk and
control 1ssues

Budgets are produced annually and key
performance targets within them are set
by the board

Performance against those budgets s
regularly reviewed and varances are
investigated and acted upon by members
of the board and both head office and
divisional managers Reforecasting s
undertaken when varlances are materal
and, if adverse, cannot be eliminated by
such action

The above systems and procedures can
only provide reasonable assurance, they
cannot eliminate the potenual of material
misstatement or loss, nor the risk of the
group falling short of its strategic objectives
and targets
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Begbies Traynor Group plc

Opinion

Wf!)have audited the financial statements of Begbias Traynor Group plc {the ‘parent company’) and 1ts subsidiaries {the 'group’) for

the year ended 30 April 2018 which comprise the consclidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
In equity, consolidated balance sheet, consclidated cash flow statement, company balance sheet, company statement of changes in
equity and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been appled in the preparation of the group financal statements 1s apphcable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting framework that has beean
applied in the preparaticn of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financal Repaorting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the Umited Kingdom and Republic of frefand (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In our opinion

o the financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 April 2018
and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

M the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union,

M the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

N the financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationai Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK} and applicable law Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report
We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to histed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamned is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to reportin respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report to you where
A the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 1s not approprate, or

s the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertamties that may cast significant doubt
about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
12 months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for 1ssue
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Financial statements

Independent auditor’'s report continued
to the members of Begbies Traynor Group plc

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional jJudgement, were of most significance 1n our audit of the finanaal statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of maternal misstatement {whether or not due to fraud) we :dentified,
including those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allccation of resources in the audit, and directing the efforts
of the engagement tearn These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whote, and in forming

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinicn on these matters

Carrying value of goodwill

The group's goodwill measurement and valuation policy 1s set
outin note 12 of these financial statements, with a summary
of goodwill set out on page 37

In accordance with [AS 36, an annual impairment review
of goodwili (see nate 12} 15 required at each year end

The impairment calculation involves a number of management
Judgements and estimates, and as such holds the potential
for bias or error

Furthermore, the £50 2m goodwill figure held in the statement
of finanaial pesition at the year end is highly material and there
1s a risk that this value may not be supported

Revenue recognition

The group's revenue recogrition pelicy 1s set out in note 2
of these financial statements

In hne with auditing standards, there s & presumed significant
risk of fraud in relation to revenue recognition for il entities
We have considered the application of the group revenue
recogmiuen policies and determined that the significant risk
in the period Is that of the overstatement of unbilled income
recorded at year end As noted in the accountng policies
{note 2}, judgements are formed over alarge portfolio of
cases meaning individual jJudgements are not material, however,
as a result of the large number of Insolvency cases being
handled by the group, the aggregate balance of unbilled
income 1s significant As a result of the significant level of
estimation involved in the balance there 1s potential for
material misstatement and significant audit work was
performed in this area

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter
in the audit

N Management has prepared imparrment calculations based on the
forecasts of the insolvency cash-generating unit {CGU), to which alf
the goodwill belongs We reviewed the methadology applied by
management to ensure consistency with prior year calculations

¥ We reviewed the assumptions used within the forecast figures for
the insolvency CGU We have compared these to the actual results
of this CGU in the financial year ended 30 April 2018, investigating
and challenging management on any unusual or significant
maovements expected going forward

8 We reviewed the key assumptions made within the calculation,
including consulung with our valuation specialists internally The
key assumptions are constdered to be the weighted average cost of
capitat (WACQ), the growth rate applied to the calculations and the
economic cycles assumed in the model (based on historical trends)
as this drives volumes for the insolvency practice, counter-cyclical
to the general economic environment I the UK

¥ Management applied sensitivity analysis to those assumptions,
{see note 12} We tested those sensitivity calculations and applied
our own sensitivity analysis to the key assumptions to consider
further the headroom available

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter
in the audit

s We tested a key control to ensure that there s sufficient challenge
placed by the group finance team on monthly unbilled mcome estimates
and judgements, including provisions Group finance review and
challenge that key estimates and provisions against unbilled income
are appropriately calculated, each month, by individual insolzency
practitioners and fee earners We have attended a sample of monthly
finance review meetings and observed the level of challenge and
follow up of iIndividual cases, which provides assurance over the
internal control in place

a A sample of year end unbilled income balances was tested through
questionnaires bengissued to the fee earners and then reviewing
their responses and associated evidence, e g creditors’ resolutions,
property valuations and balances held in bank accounts aganst the
year end position set gut

N~ We reperformed the stage of completion calculations for a sample
of cases and robustly challenged the judgements and estimares made
by management ir relation to the status of cases and ultimate
recovery of fees

s We performed cut-off testing around the year end 10 ensure
revenue has been recogrised m the correct period

a We also reviewed the stage of completion esumates made in the
prior years and assessed their accuracy based on actual outcomes
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Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements For planning.
we consider materiaiity to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions of
reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that
any misstatements exceed materiality, we use alower materiality tevel, performance materiality, to determine the extent of testing needed

Importantly, russtatements below these levels will not necessanly be evaluated as immateriat as we also rake account of the nature of
idenufied misstatements, and the particular arcumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the financial statements
as awhole

Performance materiaiity has been set at 70% of materiality This has been assessed on criteria such as histonc adjustment levels,
complexity and the controls of the group

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiaiity for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Group materiality £275,000 (2017: £335,000)

Group performance materiality £192,500 (2017 £200,000)

Parent company materiality £205,000 (2017 £247,500)

Parent company performance materiality £153,750{2017 £185,625)

Basis for group materiality 5% of adjusted profit before tax

Rationale for the benchmark adopted Begtres Traynor Group plc is AIM hsted, with profit-making intentions,

and significant investors external to the group Adjusted profitis
considered to be a key KPI for the group and as such a profit-based
materiality basis is considered appropriate We have adjusted for
amortsation and transaction costs as these costs do not specifically
relate to any business operations The adjusted figure gives a more
appropriate basis in line with a benchmark used for business decision
making and used by the investor/shareholder community

For each component in the group audit we aliocated a planning materiality lower than our overall group planning matenality and used
£185,000 (2017 £247,500) as a maximum component matenahty with a restriction of 75% for performance materiality

We agreed with the audit committee that we would report to the commuttee all ndradual audit differences identified during the course
of our audit n excess of £13,750 (2017 £10,000) We also agreed to report differences below these threshalds that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds

An overview of the scope of our audit
Qur group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the group and 1ts environment, including group-wide controls,
and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the group level

All significant compeonents within the group were subject to full scope audit

Audits of the components were performed at a materiality level calculated by reference to a proportion of group materiality appropriate
to the relative scale of the business concerned

BDO LLP conducted the audit of ali components of the business and no component auditers were used during the audit process
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Independent auditor’s report continued
to the members of Beghies Traynor Group pic

Other information

The directors are responsitle for the other information The other informaton comprises the information mcluded in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and cur auditer’s report thereon Cur opimion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibihity 1s to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information 1s matenalty inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 1N the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated If we identfy such material Inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a materal misstaternent in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other informaton |If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatement of this other information, we are required (o
report that fact We have nothing to report in this regard

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

N the information given in the strategic report and the directars’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements, and

o the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with apphcable legal requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
in the hght of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and 1ts environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified materal misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relaton to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
1N oUr OPINION

¥ adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adeguate for our sudit have not been receved
from branches not wisited by us, or

™ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
N certain disclesures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

M we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financiai
statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the gaing concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to iquidate the group or the parent company or o cease operations, or have no realistic alternatrve
butto doso

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Cur chjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free frem material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that includes cur opimion Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance,
but1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs {UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, indmwidually or In aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these finangial statements

Afurther description of our responsibilines for the audit of the financial statements s located on the Financial Reporung Counal's
website at www fr¢ org uk/auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of our auditor's report
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Use of our report
This report s made sclely to the parent company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006

QOur avdit werk has been undertaken so that we might state to the parent company's members those matters we are reguired 1o state {o
them in an auditor’s repart and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by faw, we do not accept or assume respensibility
to anyone other than the parent company and the parent company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
optnions we have formed

Mark Langford (Senior Statutory Auditor}
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
Leeds

9 July 2018

BDO LLP 1s a hmited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number GC305127)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 April 2018

2018 2017

Notes £000 £000
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 52,441 49,685
Direct costs {(30,141) {28,130}
Gross profit 22,300 21,555
Other operating income 3 400 3597
Admimistrative expenses (19,922) (20,309)
Operating profit (before amortisation and transaction costs) 6,059 5.627
Transaction costs 6 {1,364) {1,545)
Amartisation of intangible assets arsing on acquisitions (1.917) (2,439)
Operating profit 2.778 1,643
Finance costs 8 {482) (1,000
Profit before tax 2,296 542
Tax 9 {872) 429
Profit for the year from continuing operations 1,424 213
Discontinued operations
Loss for the year from discontinued operations, net of tax 5 _ 476)
Profit (loss) for the year 1,424 (263)
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations — 2
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 1,424 {267;
Earnings (loss) per share
From continuing operations
Basic and diluted 17 1.3 pence 02 pence
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic and diluted 11 1.3 pence (C 2) pence

The profit, comprehensive incorme and earnings per share for both years 1s attributable to equity holders of the parent
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 April 2018

Strategic report

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Capital

Share Share Merger redempticn Translation Retained Toral

“anital premium TELRT VA reserve reserve earnmngs &"’]EJITy

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £ D00
At 1 May 2016 as previcusly reported 5,617 23,042 17,584 — (2) 13,995 60,230
Restatement (923) 923 — — — —
At 1 May 2016 restated 5,611 22118 18,507 — (2 13,995 60,230
Loss for the year — — — — - {263) (263)
Cther comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations — - — — 2 — 2
Total comprahensive loss for the vear — — — — i {(263) (261)
Dwvidends — — — — — {2,335) (2,335)
Credit to equity for equity-settied
share-based payments e — — — — 431 431
Shares issued 28 216 — — — (210 35
At 30 April 2017 5,640 22,335 18,507 — — 11,618 58,100
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — — — 1,424 1,424
Dradends — — — — — {2,356 {2,356)
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — — 295 295
Own shares acquired in the year (304} — — 304 — {226) (2286)
Shares 1ssued 172 454 1,74 — — (455; 1.912
At 30 April 2018 5,508 22,789 20,248 304 — 10,300 59,149
A descrniption of the nature and purpose of each reserve 1s included within note 28
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Consolidated balance sheet
at 30 April 2018

2018 2017
Motes £000 £000
Non-current assets
intangible assets 12 59,061 58,471
Property, plant and equipment 13 1,512 1,498
Trade and other receivables 14 1,759 —
62,332 59.969
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 14 30,829 29,761
Cash and cash equivalents 3,518 6,715
34,347 36,476
Total assets 96,679 96,445
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 (17,268) (13,585)
Current tax habihties {1.548) (843}
Provisions 17 (783) {755)
(19,599) (15,183)
Net current assets 14,748 21,293
Non-current liabitities
Trade and other payables 15 {1,093) (335
Borrowings 16 (11,000) {17,000)
Provisions 17 (414) (418)
Deferred tax 18 (5.424) (5,409)
(17,931} (23,162)
Total liabilities {37,530) (38,345)
Net assets 59,149 58,100
Equity
Share capital 20 5,508 5,640
Share premium 22,789 22,335
Merger reserve 20,248 18,507
Capital redemption reserve 304 —
Retained earnings 10,300 11,618
Equity attributable to owners of the company 59,149 53,100

The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group ple, registered number 5120043, were approved by the board of directors and
authorised for :ssue on 9 july 2018 They were signed on its behalf by

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor
Executive chairman Group finance director
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 April 2018
2018 2007

Motes £000 £1000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated by operations 23 9,065 7974
Income taxes paid (980} {1,462)
Interest paid (558} (919)
Net cash from operating activities 71,527 5,593
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (394) (289)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets 12 (77) (8}
Deferred consideration payments (1,132) (1,144)
Acguisition of businesses 22 (803) (1,773)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,406) (3,214)
Financing activities
Divicends paid 10 {2,356) {2,335)
Proceeds onissue of SIP scheme shares 38 37
Repayment of loans (6,000) (1,000}
Net cash used in financing activities (8,318) (3,298}
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3.197) (919}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,715 7,634
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3,518 6,715
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2018

1. General information
Beghies Traynar Group plc I1s a campany ncorporated 1n England and Wales under the Comparies Act 2006 The address of the

registered office 15 340 Deansgate, Manchester M3 4LY

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because thats the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the group operates

2. Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with apphcable UK law and International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs") as adopted by the Eurcpean Union (EUY, including International Accounting Standards ('IAS’) and interpretations 1ssued by
the [RFS Interpretations Committee ('IFRS iC

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and all accounting policies have been apphed consistently
throughout the current and preceding year

Going concern

The group's business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position, are set outinthe
chairman's statement and strategic report The financiai position of the group, its cash flows, Ilquidity position and borrowing facilities
are described in the strategic report

Furthermore, notes 16 and 19 to the financial statements include full details of the group’s berrowings in addition to the group's objectives
and pohcies for managing its capital, its financial risk management objectives and Its exposures to credit, interest rate and lquidity risk

The group has principal committed banking facihities of £25 0 million, of which £7 5 mullion was utihsed (£11 midhon drawn less £3 5 muliion
of cash balances) at 30 Aprit 2018

In carrying out therr duties m respect of going concern, the directors have completed a review of the group's current financial position
and cash flow forecasts for a period exceeding 12 months from the date of signing these financial statements This review included
sensitivity analysis to determine the potential impact on the group of reasenably possible downside scenartos Under all modelled
scenanos, the group’s banking facilites were sufficient and all associated covenant measures were forecast to be met

After making enguiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group have adeqguate resources to
continue in pperatignal existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis N preparing
the Annual Report and Accounts

Adjusted performance measures

Management believes that adjusted performance measures provide meaningful information to the users of the accounts cn the performance
of the business and are the performance measures used by the board Accordingly, adjusted measures of operating profit, profit before tax
and earnings per share exclude, where apphcable, transaction costs, amortisation of Intangible assets ansing on acquisiions, refinancing costs
and related tax effects on these items

The items excluded from adjusted results are those which arnise due to acquisitions and are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehansive income in accordance with IFRS 3 or are cne-offin nature They are notinfluenced by the day-to-day operations of the group

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Beghies Traynor Group plc and entities controlled by
Begbies Traynior Group plc {its subsiciaries, which include limited hability partnerships) Controbis achieved if all three of the following
are achieved power gver the investee, exposure [c variable returns for the investee, and the ability of the investor to Use Its power to
affect those variable returns

The results of subsidianies are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

The results of entities acguired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate

Where necessary, the accounts of the subsidiaries are adjusted to conform to the group's accounting policies All intra-group
transactions, balances, Income and expenses are eliminated on consolidaticn

{c) Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidianes and businesses 1s accounted for using the acquisition method The consideration for each acguisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, llabilities incurred or assumed, and equity Instruments
1ssued by the group in exchange for control of the acquiree

in accordance with the IFRS Interpretation Committee’s .nterpretation of paragraph B5S of IFRS 3, the cost of the business combinaton

excludes consideration which requires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed by the seling shareholders These amounts
are accounted for as deemed remuneration and are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income over the period of
the obligation
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2. Accounting policies continued

(c) Business combinations continued

Consideration pard In advance of the service obligation being delivered is recognised as an asset within trade and other receivables
The balance is disclosed within current assets for service obhgations in ess than 12 months and in non-current assets for service
obligations after mare than 12 months In the event that the service obligations have been delivered in advance of the payment
betng made, the resultant hability 1s recognised within trade and other payables

Identifiable assets acguired and labilities and contingent habilities assumed in a business combination are measured mitizlly at their fair
values at the acguisiion date Where the fair value of the assets and liabilities at acquisition cannet be determined rehably in the initial
accounting, these values are considered (o be provisional for a period of 12 months from the date of acquisiion If additional informatian
relating to the condition of these assets and lizbilities at the acquisition date 1s obtained withir this period, then the provisional values
are adusted retrospactively This includes the restatement of comparative information for prior perods

Goodwill ansing on acquisinon Is recognised as an asset and imittally measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the group's interest in the net fair value of the 1dentifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabilities recognised
If the group’s Interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, llatnhiies and contingant liabilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess is recogmsed immediately in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income

Adjustments to conungent consideration for acguisitions made before 1 May 2010 {from which date IFRS 3 (revised) has been adoptea)
are recorded against goadwill Adjustments to contingent consideration for acguisitions made after 1 May 2010 are recorded m the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Transaction costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as incurred and separately disclosed due
to the nature of this expense

{d) Intangible assets

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consoldation 1s recognised as an asset

Following inmial recognition, gocdwlll 1s subject to impairment reviews, at least annually, and measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses Any impairment 1s recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and 18
not subsequently reversed

On disposal of a subsidiary the attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s included in the determination of the gan or loss on disposal

Goodwill arising on acguisitions before the date of the group's transition to IFRS has been retained at the previcus UK GAAP amounts,
subject to being tested for impairment at that date and at least annually thereafter

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are measured inmally at cost and are amortised on a straight-ine basis over therr estimated useful hves
The carrying amount is reduced by any provision for impairment where necessary

On a business combination, as well as recording separable intangibie assets already recognisedin the balance sheet of the acquired
entity at their fair value, Identfiable intangible assets that are separable or anse from contractuai or other legal rights are also included
Inthe acquisition baiance sheet at farr value

Amortisation Is charged within administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incaome so as tc write off the
cost or valuation of assets over therr estirmnated useful hives, on the following basis

Software on strategic systems 10% of cost

Intangible assets arising on acquisitions 10%--50% of far value at acquisition

{e) Property, plant and equipment
All assets are stated at hustoncal cost less accumulated depreciation and accumutated impairment losses

Depreciation s charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, on the following basts

Computers 20%-33% of cost

Motor vehicles 25% on a reducing balance basis
Office equipment 15%-25% of cost

Leasehold improvements evenly over period of lease

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal of an asset 15 determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and 15 recognised within profit or loss for the perod

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over thewr expected useful ives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter,
over the relevant lease term
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2018

2. Accounting policies continued

(f) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered animpairment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset s
estimated In order to determine the extent of any impairment 1oss Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent
from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value tess costs to sell and value inuse In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to therr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unity 1s reduced to its recoverable amount Animpairment loss 15 recognised as an expense immediately

Where an impairment loss suibsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of Its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not excead the carrying amount that would have
been determinad had no impairment lass been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)in prior years Areversal of an
impatrment loss 1s recognised as iIncome immed ately

(g) Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial iabiitres are recogriused in the group's balance sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and on-demand deposits and other short-term hughly iquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 1n value

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivabies are imitially recognised at fair value, and then subsequently stated at amartised cost lass allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts

Other receivables are stated at their farr value

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially stated at thewr fair value and subsequently at amortised cost

Financial liabilities and eguity instruments
Financial labilitles and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
An equity Instrument 1s any contract that ewdences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its labilities

Equity instruments
Equity Instruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct Issue Costs

Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are racorded at the proceeds recervad, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges, induding
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an amortised cost basis to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive Income using the effective Interest methed and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to
the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arnse

{h) Provisions
Provisions are recogrised when the group has a present legal or constructive cbligaticn as a result of a past event, it s probable that the
group will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated

(i) Leases
Leases are classified according to the substance of the transaction Alease that transfers substanually all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee 15 classified as a finance lease Ali other leases are classified as operating leases

The group as lessee
Operating lease rentals are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease even where payments are not made on such a basis Lease incentives are spread over the period of the lease

The group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease Iminal direct costs incurred
In negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added 1o the varying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straght-ine
basis over the lease term
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2. Accounting policies continued

{j) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents amounts recoverable from clients for professional services provided during the year, excluding value added tax
The group recognises revenue when the amount can be reliably measured and it 1s probable economic benefits will flow

Services provided to clients, which at the balance sheet date have not been billed, are recognised as unbified revenue

Revenue recognised in this manner i1s based on an assessment of the fair value of the services provided at the balance sheet date
reflecting the stage of completion {determined by costs incurred to date as a percentage of the total anticipated costs) of each assignment
These estimates and judgements may change over time as the case completes and this will be recogrised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income i the penod in which the revision becomes known These judgements are formed over a large portfolic of
cases and are therefore unlikely to be indrsidually matenal

Unbifled revenue on individual cient assignmenis 1s included as unbilled mcome within trade and other recervables Where amounts
are billed in advance of the services being provided, these are included within deferred income within trade and other payables

For centingent fee engagements, revenue I1s only recognised (over and above any agreed minimum fee) when, at the balance sheet date,
the outcome {o the transaction can be estimated reliably

(k) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attnibutabte to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are asseéts that necessarily
take a substantial period of ume to get ready for their intended use or salfe, are added to the cost of those assets, unul such time as the
assers are substanually ready for therr intended use or sale Other borrowing costs are recogrused in profit or loss in the period inwhich
they are incurred

{I} Pensions and retirement benefits
The group cperates a defined contribution scheme in the United Kingdom for all qualifying employees The costs of the pension funding
Rorne by the group are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income as an expense as they fail due

{m) Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the farr vaiue of the equity
instruments at the grant date The fair value excludes the effect of non market-based vesting conditions Detalls regarding the
determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 21

The fair value determined at the grant date of the eguity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-ine bass over the
vesting period, based on the group’s estimate of equity iInstruments that will eventually vest At each balance sheet date, the group
revises its estimate of the number of equity iInstruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non market-based vestng
conditions The impact of the revision of the original estimates, If any, 1s recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves

(n} Dividends
Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders, this 1s when they
are paid to shareholders In the case of final dividends, this 1s when approved by the shareholders at the AGM

(o) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current taxation

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the period Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the consoldated statement
of comprehensive income because 1t excludes items of Income or exgense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The group's hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substanuvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax s the tax expected o be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labihues in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and s accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method Deferred tax iabilities are generally recogrised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will he avallable against which deductible temporary differences can be
uthsed Such assets and habilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognimion (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and labilimes in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accountng profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable prefits will be available to allow all or part of the asset (o be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liabiity s settled or the asset 1s realised
Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to the consolidated statement of comprehenswve income except when it relates totems charged
or credited to eguity, in which case the deferred tax s also dealt with n equity

Deferred tax assets and hablities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets aganst current tax
habiities and when they relate to iIncome taxes by the same taxation authority and the group intends 1o settie 1ts current tax assets
and habilhites on a net basis
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 30 April 2018

2. Accounting policies continued

(p) Charge arising under Begbies Traynor London (LLP) put and call option

The anticipated hability to the group under this option (as detaled in the directors remuneration report) 1s charged to the consclidated
statement of comprehensive iIncome as earned, and inctuded as a transaction <ost within administrative expenses

(q) Critical accounting judgements and other key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, the group is required to make certan estimates, judgements and assumptions
that It believes are reasonable based upon the information avallatle These estimates and assumpticns affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabiities at the date of the finanaal statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses dunng the periods presented

On an ongoing basis, the group evaluates its estimates using histoncal experience, consultation with experts and other methods considered
reasonable in the particular circumstances Actual results may differ from the estimates, the effect of which 1s recognised In the period
inwhich the facts that give nise to the revision become known

The group believes that the estimates and judgements in relation to gocdwili have the mest significant impact on the annual results
under IFRS as set out below

Goodwill

The group records all assets and habilities acquired in purchase acquisitions, ncluding goodwill, at fair value Goodwill 1s not amortised
buts subject, at a miimum, to annual tests for impairment The initial goodwill recorded and subsequent impairment review requires
management to make subjective judgements concerning the value in use of cash-generating units This requires an estimate of the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate to calculate present value Details of
the assumptions made are provided in note 12

(r) Other sources of estimation uncertainty

Intangible assets in a business combination

Onthe acquisition of a business the identifiable intangible assets may include brands, customer relationships, customer contracts,
order backlogs and websites The fair value of these assets 1s determined by discounting estimated future net cash flows generated by
the asset where no active market for the assets exists The use of different assumptions for the expectanions of future cash flows, the
discount rate and the expected contingent consideration payable would change the valuation of the intangible assets and the resulting
gain on acquisition recognsed Details of the assumptions made in relation to current year acquIsSILIons are 1N note 22

(s) Recently issued accounting pronouncements

International Financial Reporting Standards
The following new amendment has been applied in these financial statements

Amendment to |AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following relevant standards and interpretations were in1ssue but not yet
effective and have not been appled in these financial statements

Interrational Frnancial Reporting Standaras (IRFSs) Ff“ective date (year er g cumrenc ng on ar after;
IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 'Leases’ 1 January 2019
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ 1 January 2018

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
The IASE has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue, which will replace 1AS 18 ‘Revenue’ (which covers contracts for goods
and services) and IAS 11 'Construction Contracts’

IFRS 15 sets out the principles for recogrising revenue from contracts with customers and will reguire the group 1o use a five step
approach to allocate the revenue earned from contracts to individual performance cbligations

The impact of the standard on the group has been assessed and ;s not expected to materially impact the amount and/cr timing of
revenue recognition from services provided

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 replaces the exisuing accountng requirements In 1AS 17 'Leases’ A single model for lessees will be required, eliminaung off
balance sheet accounting for non-exempt operating leases Related lease assets and habilities will therefore come onto the balance
sheet and the presentation and timing of income and expense recognition in the mcome statement will change

The impact of the standard on the group is currently being assessed, and the group anticipates that it will have a material impact on
the financial statements, including operating profit, profit befare tax, total assets and total habihities

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ replaces IAS 39 'Financal instruments Recognition and Measurement’ The standard introduces a new
impairment model based on expected credit losses The impact of the standard on the group 1s currently being assessed
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During the year the group reclassified the premium on shares issued as consideration for acguisitions from share premium to merger
reserve At 1 May 2016 the opening reserves adjustment between share premium and merger reserve was £323,000

There s no impact on Net assets, adjusted profit before tax, adjusted EPS or reported cashflows

3. Revenue
An analysis of the group’s revenue 15 as follows
2018 2017
£'000 £000
Continuing operations
Rendering of professional services 52,441 49,685
Other income 400 397
52,841 50,082

4. Business segments

The group’s operating segments are established on the basis of the components of the group that are evaluated regularly by the chief
operating decision maker The group COMprises two operating segments business recovery and advisory services, and property services

Segmental information about these businesses is presented below

Business
recovery and
advisory Property
services services Consolidated
2018 2018 2018

Continuing operatusans £000 £'000 £000
Revenue
Total revenue from rendenng of professional services 38,273 14,288 52,561
Inter-segment revernie _— (120) (1209
External revenue 38,273 14,168 52,441
Segmental result 7,563 3,132 10,695
Shared and central costs (4,636)
Operatng profit before amortisation and transaction costs 6,059
Transaction costs (1.364)
Amortisation of intangible assets anising on acquistions (1,917)
Operating profit 2,778
Finance costs {482)
Profit before tax 2,296
Tax (872)
Profit for the financial year 1,424
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 85,928 7,233 93,161
Unallocated corporate assets 3,518
Consolidated total assets 96.679
Liabilities
Segment habilities {15,085} (4,473) (19,558)
Unallocated corporate labilities (17,972)
Consolidated total iabilities {37,530}
Net assets 59,149
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4. Business segments continued

Unallacated amounts include current and deferred tax labilities, cash and financial habihities and other central assets and habilities

Business
recovery and
advisory Property
services services  Consolidated
2018 2018 2018
£000 £'000 £000
Other information
Non-current assets additions from acguisitions 2,276 444 2,720
Capital and software additions 412 59 471
Depreciation and software amorusation 545 125 670
Business
recovery and
advisory Property
Services seryices Cansolidated
2017 2017 2017
Continuing operalions £'000 £'000 £7100
Revenue
Total revenue from rendering of professional services 36,231 13,524 49,755
Inter-segment revenue — (70} {70)
External revenue 36,231 13,454 49,685
Segmental result 7353 2,900 10,253
Shared and central costs {4,626)
Operating profit before amortisauion and transaction costs 5627
Transaction costs {1,545}
Ameortisation of intangible assets arising on acquisitions {2,439)
Operating profit 1,643
Finance costs {1.001
Profit before tax 642
Tax (429)
Profit for the financial year 213
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 81,388 8,342 89,730
Unallocated corporate assets 6,715
Consolhdated total assets 96,445
Liabilities
Segment habihtues (10,884, (4,209) {15,093)
Unallocated corporate liabiites (23,252)
Consolidated total habihues (38,345}
Net assets 58,100
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Business
recovery and
advIscry Property
Services SerJ1Ces Consolidated
2017 2017 2017
£000 £600 £'000
Other information
Non-current assets additions from acguisitions 116 2,553 2,669
Caprtal and software additions 272 25 297
Depreciation and software amortisation 745 194 943

Geographical segments
The group's principal operatons and markets are located in the UK

5. Discontinued operations

In the year ended 30 April 2015 the group discontinued its global risk partners division Inthe prior year, a post-tax impairment charge
of £476,000 was recognised in the year against deferred consideration recervable

2007
£000
Administrative expenses (594)
Loss before tax (594)
Tax 18
Loss for the prior year from discontinued operations {476)
6. Profit (loss) for the year
Profit {loss) for the yaar has been arrived at after charging (Crediting)
Cantirumg Discontinued Tatal
2018 2017 2018 7 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Net foreign exchange loss (gain) 3 (7) — — 3 {7}
Depreciation of property, plant
and eguipment 488 765 — — 488 769
Amortisation of iIntangible assets 2,099 2,613 - — 2,099 2613
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and eguipment —_ 13 — — — 13
Staff casts (note 7) 31121 28,081 _ -— 31,121 28,0814
Operating lease rentals payable 2,637 2,756 - — 2,687 2,756
impairment of receivable balances
(note 14) 466 404 — — 466 404
impairment of deferred cansideration
recewvable (note 5) — — - 594 - 594
Reversal of imparment losses
recognised on trade receivables
(note 14) (247) (48} - — (247) (46)
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6. Profit (loss) for the year continued
During the year, the group obtained the following services from the group's audttor, at the costs detalled below

2018 2017
£000 £000
Fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company’s annual accounts 30 30
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its associates for other services to the group
- the audit of the company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 74 70
Totat audit fees 104 100
- other adwvisory services 8 37
Total non-audit fees 8 37
Dunng the year, the group mcurred transaction costs as detalled below
2018 2077
£000 £000
Deemed remuneration 1,678 1,420
ACQUISILIGN COSLS 117 141
Gain on acguisition (nota 22) {1,189) {357)
Charge ansing under Beghies Traynor London (LLP) put and call option 758 335
Total transaction costs 1.364 1,545
These transaction costs are all included within administrative expenses
7. Staff costs
The average monthly number of persons (Including executive directors) working within the group was
2018 2017
number numkber
Partners and consultants 47 44
Fee earning staff 360 351
Support staff 149 143
556 538
2018 2017
£°000 £000
Thelr aggregate remuneration comprised
Wages, salarnes and partners' profit share 27,493 24771
Soc1al security costs 2,130 1,792
Pension costs (note 26) 1,203 1,087
Share-based payments 295 431
31121 28,081
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7. Staff costs continued
Directors’ remuneration

2018 2077
£000 £000
Shert-term benefits 1.667 1,396
Share-based payments 2 5
1,669 1,401
Number Number
The average number of directors who
Had awards recevable in the form of shares under a long-term incentive scheme 2 2
No directors particpated in the group's defined contribution pension scheme during erther year
8. Finance costs
2018 2017
£000 £000
Interest on bank loans 482 760
Unwinding of discount on deferred consideration liabilities — 16
interest costs 482 776
Refinancing costs - 225
Total finance costs 482 1.001
9. Tax Zonlnumng Thscont nued Toral
2018 2017 2018 20°7 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Current tax charge {credit) 1,224 997 - {118) 1,224 873
Adjustment in respect of prior year (4) (2) - — {4) (2)
Total current tax charge {credit) 1,220 939 — (118) 1,220 871
Deferred tax credit (note 18) (244) (560) — — {244) (560)
Adpustment i respect of prior year (104) — — — (104) —
Total deferred tax credit (348) {560) —_ — (348) (560)
Total income tax charge (credit) 872 429 _ (118) 872 311
Corporation tax is calculated at 19% (2017 19 92%) of the estimated assessable prafit for the year
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows
2018 2017
£000 £000
Profit before tax from continuing operations 2,296 642
Loss before tas from discontinued operations — (534)
Profit before tax 2,296 48
Notional tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2017 19 32%) 436 10
Adpustments in respect of current income tax of prior years {108) (2)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 544 603
impact of change in tax rate — (300)
Total tax expense reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 872 31
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10. Dividends

2018 2017
£000 £000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
Inter:im dividend for the year ended 30 Aprit 2017 of 0 6 pence (2016 0 6 pence) per share 640 637
Final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2017 of 1 6 pence (2016 1 6 pence} per share 1,716 1,698
2,356 2,335
Amounts proposed as distributions to equity holders
Interim dividend for the yvear ended 30 Apnl 2018 of 0 7 pence (2017 O 6 pence) per share M 640
Final drvidend for the year ended 30 April 2018 of 17 pence (2017 16 pence) per share 1.872 1,707
2,643 2,347

The proposed final drvidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting 1n September 2018 The intertm
dmdend for 2018 was not paid untl 10 May 2018 and, accordingly, has not been included as a hability In these financial statements

nor as a distribution to equity shareholders

11. Earnings per share
The calcutation of the basic and diluted earnings per share I1s based on the following data

2018 2017
£000 £000
Earnings
Profit for the year from continuing eperations attributable to eguity holders 1,424 213
Loss from discontinued operations attributable to egquity holders —_ (476)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders 1.424 (263)
2018 m7
numbker numbper
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ardinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 108,998,901 107,246,497
Effect of dilutive potenual ordinary shares
Share options 1,264,656 1,688,849
Conungent shares as consideration for capital transactions 3,196,612 1,642,313
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 113,460,169 110,577,659
2018 017
pence perce
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share from:
Continuing operations 1.3 02
Discontinued aperations - {04)
Total 1.3 02
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11. Earnings per share continued
The following additional earnings per share figures are presented as the directors believe they provide a better understanding of the
trading position of the group

2018 2017
£000 £'000
Earnings from continuing operations
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders 1,424 213
Amortisation of iIntangible assets arising on acquisitions 1,917 2,439
Transaction costs 1,364 1,545
Refinancing costs — 225
Tax effect of above items (364} (875)
Adjusted earnings 4,341 3,547
2018 2017
pence pence
Adjusted basic earmings per share from continuing operations 4.0 33
Adjusted diluted earmings per share from continuing operations 3.8 32
12. Intangible assets
Inta-gionle
assets
Arising or
Goadwill Software ALAUHSILONS Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 May 2016 50,129 1,721 16,534 68,384
Arsing on acquisitions — — 2,669 2,669
Additions — 8 — 8
AU30 Apnil 2017 50129 1,729 19,203 71,061
Arising on acquisitions 84 — 2,528 2,012
Additions — 77 — 77
At 30 April 2018 50,213 1.806 21,731 73,750
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 May 2016 — 1,01 8,966 9.977
Amortisation during the year — 174 2,439 2,613
AL 30 Apnil 2017 — 1,185 11,4355 12,590
Amornsation during the year — 182 1917 2,099
At 30 April 2018 — 1,367 13,322 14,689
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2018 50,213 439 8,40¢ 59,061
AL 30 April 2017 50,129 544 7,798 58,471
At 30 April 2015 50,129 710 7,568 58,407

The carrying value of Intangible assets arising on acquisitions comprises brands of £2,680,000 (2017 £2,607,000), customer relationships
of £3,832,00G (2017 £3,312.,000), custormer contracts of £849.000 (2017 £1,376,000), arder backlog of £67.000 (2017 £225,000), order
bock of £734,000 (2017 nil) and websites of £247,000 (2017 £273,000) The remaining useful economic lives of iIntangible assets arising
on acquisition are betwe2en one and nine years

Goodwili scquired in a business combinauon is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGUS’) that are expected
to benefit from that business combination The carcying amount of goodwill has been allocated wholly to the insolvency CGU

The group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired
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12. Intangible assets continued

The recoverable amount of the CGU is based on a value 1 use calculation using cash flow projections over a 20 year period, including
the latest one y=ar forecast approved by the board A 20 year period has been used as the directers believe this 1s an appropriate penod
to reflect insoivency numbers over an econemic cycle

The one year forecast1s prepared considening local partners’ expectations based on market knowledge, numbers of new engagements
and the pipeline of opporturities The remaining years are based on anticipated nsolvency numbers over an economic cycle, together
with fustoncal financal performance

Key assumptions used in value in use calculation
The key assumptions for the value In use calculation are those regarding

A pre-tax discount rate,
A revenue, and
N gperating profit margins

Pre-tax discount rate

The group’s post-tax weighted average cost of capital has been used to calculate a group pre-tax discount rate of 10% (2017 10 5%),
which reflects current market assessments of the time value of money for the pericd under review and the risks specific to the group

As the nsolvency CGU comprises the significant majority of the group's activinies this has been used as the discount rate for the purpose
of the value in use calculation

Revenue

Revenue assumptions in the one year forecast are derived from focal partners’ expectations based on market knowledge, numbers
of new engagements and the pipehine of opportunties Future year revenue levels are based on anticipated insolvency numbers
over an economic cycle This anticipates an Increase In insalvency appointments during recession followed by subseguent decreases
The average number of insclvency appointments over the ecanomic cycle s n ine with histarnical levels

Operating profit margins

Operating profit margins in the one year forecast are derived from focat partners’ expectations based on the number of current
engagements and cost base Margins over the extrapolation peniod are forecast based on past expeniences and expectations of
future market developments

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
with regard to the assessment of value in use for the insolvency CGU, the directors believe that reascnably possible changes in any
of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying value of the unit to exceed 1ts recoverable amount
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Leasehald Office Motor
Improvements enuipment computers vehicles Toral
£000 £1000 £'000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 May 2016 4,280 1,406 2,911 14 8,611
ATISINE ON acquisition — 7 5 — 12
Additions 31 23 235 — 289
Cisposals (23 (12 {7 {14} {56)
AL30 April 2017 4,288 1,424 3144 — 8,856
AFISINg on acguisition 76 " 15 52 108
Additrons 6 72 316 — 3594
Disposals (219) {1} — — (220)
At 30 April 2018 4,101 1,506 3,479 52 9,138
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 May 2016 3,074 1,104 7441 13 6,632
Charge for the year 373 161 235 — 769
Disposals (19) (@) {2) {13 {43}
AL 30 Apnil 2017 3,428 1,256 2,674 — 7.358
Charge for the year 188 31 215 4 488
Disposals {219) {1 — — (220)
At 30 April 2018 3,397 1,336 2,889 4 7.626
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2018 704 170 590 48 1,512
AL30 Apnl 2017 860 168 470 — 1,498
At 30 April 2016 1,206 302 470 1 1,979
14. Trade and other receivables
2018 2047
£'000 £000
Non-current
Deemed remuneration 1,759 —
Current
Trade receivables 5,658 5341
Unbilled income 21,719 20,809
Other debtors and prepayments 2,153 2,908
Deemed remuneration 1,299 703
30,829 29,761
Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated net of allowances for doubtful recevables of £1,082,000 (2017 £1,020 000)
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates to then fair value
Trade recewvables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms Refer to note 13 for disclosures on credit risk
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14. Trade and other receivables continued
As at 30 April, the analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not impaired 1s as follows

Nerther past Pas* cue but notimparred
due nor
Impaired up Mare than
Total =0 30 days 1-3 months 4 morths
£600 £000 £000 £000
2018 5,658 4,348 618 692
2017 5,341 3,451 888 1,002
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
2018 2017
£000 £000
Balance at beginning of the year 1.020 852
AMOoUNts arising on acgquisition - 19
Amounts wnitten off during the year (157} (209)
Amounts recovered during the year {247} {46}
Increase in allowance recogmised in profit or loss 466 404
Balance at end of the year 1,082 1.020
15. Trade and other payables
2018 017
£000 £'000
Current
Trade payables 1,414 1,258
Accruals 6,902 4,553
Other taxes and social secunty 2,319 2,363
Deferred income 1,807 1,984
Other creditors 4,249 3,088
Deemed remuneration habihties 577 339
17,268 13,585
Non-current
Deerned rernuneration labilities 1,093 335

Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms agreed with suppliers
The directors consider that the carrying amaunt of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value

In addition to the deemed remuneration habilities recognised above of £1 7m, there are further anticipated obhigations based on current
forecasts of £3 Om as a result of acquisitions where the service cbligations of the selling shareholders have not yet been deilvered

16. Borrowings

2018 2017
£'060 £000
Unsecured borrowing at amortised cost
Bank loans 11,000 17000
Total borrowings 11,000 17,000
Amount due for settiement after 12 months 11,000 17,000
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16. Borrowings continued

The group's principal banking facilities at 30 April 2018 comprise an unsecured, revol/ing credit facility (RCF) of £25 million and an
uncemmitted acguisition faciity of £5 milhion which were entered into on 1 November 2016 The principal features of these borrowings
are summarised as follows

™ RCF of £25 million provided by HSBC, of which £11 million was drawn at 30 April 2018 (2017 £17 million) The effective interest rate
was 3 5%, together with

A uncommitted acquisition faclity of £5 mullion provided by HSBC, which was undrawn at 30 Apnil 2018 (2017 undrawn)
The group's banking faciities mature on 31 August 2027

All borrowings and cash balances are denominated in sterling The directors consider that the farr values of the group's financial
instruments approximate to their bosk value

17. Provisions

Property

Disposal exit
LrovISIons OrOLISICNS Total
E'000G £ 000 £000
At 1 May 2017 515 658 1173
Charged inthe year — 322 322
Arising on acquisition — 150 150
Utihsed (2438) {200} (448)
At 30 April 2018 267 930 1197
Current habilities 50 733 783
Non-current habilities 217 197 414
At 30 April 2018 267 930 1,197

Disposal provisions include liabiities arising from warranty and onercus contract obligations relating to discontinued businesses

Property exit provisions relate to anticipated dilapidation costs on property leases, together with onerous lease commitments where the space
15 vacant, which is calculated as the difference between future expected costs of onercus leasehold property net of any estimated income

The non-current elements of the provisions are all expected to be utilised in the periods up to 30 April 2021

18. Deferred tax
The following are the deferred tax (habilittes) assets recognised by the group and movements thereon during the current and prior year

Tax Shari-term

deductible tming
goodwill Intanginles cifferences Total
£000 £000 £000 £:000
At 1 May 2016 (4.332) {1.179) 3 {5,508)
{Charge) credit to income {108) 369 (1 260
AFISING ON acquUiSitions - {(461) - (481)
Income statement effect of change In tax rate 259 39 2 300
At 30 Apnil 2017 (4,181} (1,232) 4 (5.409)
(Charge) credit to Income (82) 192 134 244
ArISINg on acquisitions — {469) 106 (363)
Prior year adpustment — — 104 104
At 30 April 2018 {4,263) {1,509) 348 (5,424)
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18. Deferred tax continued
Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset The following 1s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for
flnancial reporting purposes

2018 2017

£000 £'000

Deferred tax habilities {5,844) {5.643)
Deferred tax assets 420 234
(5,424) (5,409)

19. Financial instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The group’s principal financial Instruments compnise cash balances and bank locans The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the group’s operations The group also has various other finanaial instruments, such as trade recevables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its cperations

It 15, and has been throughout the period under review, the group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken

The main nisks arising from the group's financial iInstruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and hguidity risk The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summansed below

Interest rate risk
The group's external borrowings at the halance sheet date comprise toan facilities All principal borrowings are on floating nterest rates
The group does not seek to fix INterest rates on these borrowings as the board currently considers the exposure to Interest rate risk acceptable

if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher and all other vanables were held constant, the group’s profit for the year ended 30 April 2018
and net assets at that date would decrease by £41,000 (2017 £56,000) This s attributable to the group’s exposure to movements in
Interest rate on its variable rate borrowings

Credit risk
The nature of the group's debitor balances, the time taken for payment by dients and the associated credit nisk are dependent on the
type of engagement

On formal insolvency appointments (which form the majonity of the group's activities), invoices are generally raised having achieved
approval from creditors to draw fees This is typically settled on a timely basis from case funds The credit nisk on these engagements
1s therefore considerad to be extremely low

On other engagements, the timescate to receive payment from the date of invoice 1s typically longer as the group’s standard 30 day
payment terms {referred to in note 14) are not practically enforceable in all situaticns The board do not believe that this 15 an indication
of Increased credit risk on these engagements

Recevable balances are momtored on an ongoing basis with the result that the group’s exposure 1¢ bad debts Is not significant
Movements In the allowance for doubtful debts are disclosed in note 14 The group does not beheve 1t 1s exposed te any material
concentrations of credit nisk

Unbilled revenue Is recognised by the group only when all conditions for revenue recognition have been met in ine with the group's
accountng policy in note 2()}

Liquidity risk

Liquirdity risk s the risk that the group will encounter difficulty In meeting its obligations associated with its financial habihties The group's
abihity to generate cash from formal insolvency appointments s usually reliant on asset realisations A detenioration In realisations in the

short term ¢ould reduce the group's operating cash generation and increase 1ts financing requirements The group monitors its risks to
a shortage of funds through regular cash managernent and forecasting and ensuring suitable headroom withun its banking faciities

The group’s objective 1s to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of its committed bank facilities,
and giving consideration to other avallable sources of finance such as bank overdrafts, finance leases and hire purchase contracts

There 1s no material risk associated with foreign currency transactions or overseas subsidiaries
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The table befow summarises the matunity profile of the group's financial habilities at 30 April based on contractual payments

At 30 April 2018

AL 30 Aprd 2007

Within Between After Within Between After
1year 2-5years 5years Total 1 yeat 2-5yea’s 5 years Total
£900 £000 £°000 £000 £00U £'000 £000 £000
Bank borrowings 298 11,653 —_ 11,951 433 18,400 — 18,833
Trade payables 1.414 — — 1,414 1,253 — — 1,258
Deemed remuneration
labilities 577 1,093 — 1,670 339 335 — 674
2,289 12,746 - 15,035 2,030 18,735 — 20,765
Capital management
The primary objective of the group's capital management 1s to support its business and maximise shareholder value The group
manages Its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in hght of changes in ecanomic conditicns and business requirements
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may raise additional or pay down debt finance, adjust the duwadend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or 1ssue new shares
The table below presents quantitative data for the components the group manages as capital
2018 207
£000 £000
Shareholders’ funds 59,149 58,100
Bank borrowings 11,000 17,000
At 30 April 70,149 75,100
Categories of financial instruments
The table below shows the classification of the group’s financial iInstruments
2018 2017
£'000 £009
Financial assets
Trade receivables 5,658 5,341
Cash at bank 3,518 6,715
8,176 12,056
Financial liabilities
Trade payables (1.414) (1.258)
Deemned remunerauon habilities (1.670) {674)
Bank borrowings {11,000) (17.000)
(14,084) (18,932)
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20. Share capital

2018 2017 2018 2017

thousand thousard £000 £0N0
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5 pence
At 1 May 106,704 106,118 5.336 5,307
Staff SIP scheme 60 74 3 4
Issue of shares for share-based payments 692 512 35 25
Consideration for acquisitrons 2,671 — 134 —
At 30 April 110,127 106,704 5,508 5.336
Allotted, called up but not fully paid
A ordinary shares of 3 pence
AL 1 May — 4,868 — 146
Cancellation of shares — {4,368) — (146)
At 30 April - — — -
Alotted, called up and fully paid
Deferred shares of 1 pence
At 1 May 30,378 15,774 304 158
Conversion of shares — 14,604 - 146
Cancellation of shares (30,378) — {304) —
At 30 April —_ 30,378 _ 304
Issued share capital 110,127 137,082 5.508 5,640

Ordinary shares carry no right to fixed income and each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the company

A ordinary shares have no rights to fixed income, dividends or voting rights at general meetings of the company The shares are only
transferable either pursuant to an offer required to be made by the City Code for the A ordinary shares or otherwise with prior written
consent of the company

Deferred shares have no nghts to fixed income, dividends or voting rights at general meetings of the company The shares are only
transferable with the consent of the company

During the year, 30,377,784 deferred shares were repurchased by the company for total consideration of £1 and cancelled, in accordance
with the resolution approved by shareholders at the annual general meeting in September 2017
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21. Share-based payments

Share option scheme
The group operateas a share option scheme which 1s settled in ordinary shares

Additional share options were 1ssued duning the year The exercise of the grants is subject to the following 50% have no performance
conditions, 25% require an overall increase in adjusted earnings per share over a three year period of RP) plus 2 5%, and 25% require

average total shareholder return to exceed that of a comparator group over a three year period
Directors’ remuneration infermation s provided on pages 14 and 15

Employee Shareholder Status (ESS) shares

Certain Eddisons employees have Employee Shareholder Status shares, which can be converted into ordinary shares in Begbies Traynor

Group plc subject to the performance of the Eddisons business

Share-based payments were valued using the Black-Scheles option pricing model with the following assumptions
Share cption Share optior Share optior Share optian
scheme schemre £55 SCreme scheme
Gran: date 25 October 2013 25 July 2014 17 October 2016 31 Octaber 20117 25 fonil 2018
Share price at grant date (pence) 38 52 48 63 69
Exercise price (pence) 37 51 — 63 68
Vesting period (years) 3 3 1-3 3 3
Time to expiry {years) 10 10 1-3 10 10
Expected volatlity (%) 23 25 8 17 17
Risk free rate (%) 08 Gg 05 05 05
Expected dividend yield (%) 62 62 44 36 35
Fair value per option {(pence) 33 98 48 4.4 54

The expected volatiity has been determined based on historical volatiity of the group’s share price ov
free rate I1s based on UK treasury 1ssued bonds of a term consistent with the option Iife The fair value |
of the options

Details of movements in shares under opuion during the year are as follows

ar the last three years The risk
s spread over the vesting period

2018 2017

Number Weighted kuriber Weighter

of share average of share average

optiens  exercise price optons SXErCISE PrIce

thousand £ trousand £

Cutstanding at T May 4,795 0.26 8,343 045
Granted during the period 2,250 0.63 1,695 —
Exercised dunng the period (1,608) 0.17 {375} 037
Expired during the period (300) 0.62 {4,868} 048
Outstanding at 30 April 5,137 0.43 4,795 026
Exercisable at 30 April 975 0.37 1,725 037

The group recognised an expenss of £295,000 (2017 £431,000) 0 refation to equity-settled share-bas
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for options exeraised In the year was 68 penc

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at 30 April 2018 15 between nil and 63 pence The
contractual hfe for share options cutstanding 13 6 5 years

ed payments
e

welghted average remaining
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22. Acquisitions

CJM Asset Management
On 6 February 2018 the group acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Fyrebrand Limited trading as CJM Asset Management,
a speazlist industrial plant and machinery auctioneer

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and habilities assumed are set out below

Fair value
Bonk value adjusiments Fair value
£000 £050 £000
Net assets acquired
intangible assets 1 344 345
Property, plant and equipment 73 — 73
Trade and other recevables 36 40 56
Cash and cash egquivalents 102 — 102
Trade and otheér payables (86) (10) (96)
Provisions — (50 (50)
Corperation tax (22) - (22)
Deferred tax — (43) {43)
Total identifiable assets 164 201 365
Satisfied by:
Cash 150
Equity instruments (134,462 ordinary shares in Beghies Traynor Group plc) 100
Inttial consideration 250
Contingent consideration 225
Payment due in respect of net working capital acquired 38
Less amounts treated as deemed remuneration (475)
Total consideration 38
Gain on acquisition 327
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 150
Less cash and cash equivalents acquired (102)
48

Fair value adjustments of £344,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded Details of intangible
assets recorded can be found 1n note 12

Under the terms of the acquisition, addit:ional contingent considerat:on of up to £225,000 will become payable subject to the achievermnent
of financial targets for the consclidated machinery and business asset disposal business {representing the pre-existing Eddisons business
merged with CJM) in the three year penod directly following completion Any additional consideration s calculated according to an
agreed formuta and payable i cash

The consideration payable for this acguisition requires past-acquisition service obligations to be performed by the selling shareholders over
athree year period These amounts are treated as deemed remuneration and charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
ncome gver the period of the obligation

Acquisition costs of £33,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive Income as a transaction cost

The acquisition contributed £0 2 million of revenue and £0 1 million to the group's adjusted profit before tax for the penod between the
date of acquisition and the balance sheet date If the acguisition had been completed on the first day of the financial year, the group
revenues for the period woutd have been £53 4 million and group profit before tax would have been £2 3 milhon
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22. Acquisitions continued

Springhoard Corporate Finance
On 6 March 2018 the group acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Springboard Corperate Finance Limited, a corporate finance practice

The amounts recognised in respect of the idenufiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are set out below

Fair value
Book value adjstments Fair value
£00U £000 £000

Net assets acquired
Intang!ble assets — 1,910 1,910
Property, plant and equipment 35 — 35
Trade and other receivables 120 {7} 13
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,910 — 1,210
Trade and other payables (257) 6) (263)
Provisions —_ (100 {(100)
Corporation tax {443) — {(443)
Deferred tax (6) (320} (326)
Total identifiable assets 1,355 1,477 2,836
Satisfied by:
Cash 1,375
Equity instruments (1,884,568 ordinary shares in Begbies Traynor Group plc) 1,375
Inital consideration 2,750
Conuingent consideration 500
Imtial payment re cash at completion subject te completion accounts adjustments 1,250
Final payment due following completion accounts adjustments 36
Less amounts treated as deemed remuneraticn (2,562)
Total consideration 1,974
Gain on acguisition 862
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 2,625
Less cash and cash equivalents acquired (1,910)

715

Fair value adjustments of £1,910,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded Detalls of intangible
assets recorded can be found in note 12

Under the terms of the acquisition, additional contingent consideration of up to £500,000 wili become payable subject to the
achievement of financial targets in the five year period directly following completion The contingent consideration is calculated
according to an agreed formula and 1s payable in cash

A proportion of the inttial consideration and all conungent consideration payable for this acquisition reguires post-acquisition service
obligations to be performed by the selling shareholders over a five year period These amounts are treated as deemed remuneration and
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the penod of the obligation

Acguisition costs of £57,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as a transaction cost

The acqusiuon contrnbuted £0 4 million of revenue and £3 1 million to the group's adjusted profit before tax for the period between the
date of acquisition and the balance sheet date If the acquisition had been completed on the first day of the financial year, the group
revenues far the period would have been £54 2 milion and group profit before tax would have been £2 3 milhion
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22, Acquisitions continued

Other

On 5 October 2017 the group acquired a portfolio of Insolvency cases froem the hguidators of Invocas Financial Limited for a total
consideration of £40,000

The amounts recagnised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and habilities assumed are set out below

Fair value
Book value adjusiments Far value
£000 £020 £000

Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 273 273
Trade and other recevables 538 (400} 138
Trade and other payables (236) (240} (476)
Deferred tax — 21 21
Total identifiable assets 302 (346} {44)
Satisfied by:
Cash 40
Total consideration a0
Goodwill 84

Farr value adjustments of £273,000 relating to the separate recognition of intanginle assets have been recorded Details of intangible
assets recorded can be found in note 12

The amounts recognised above are provisional estimates There have been no material changes to prior year estimates

Reconciliation of cash outflows from acquisition of businesses

2018 2017

£000 £ 000

Cash consideration {1,565) (2,000)
Payments re cash at completion {1,250) {146)
Cash and cash eguivalents acquired 2,012 373
Net cash and cash eguivalents acguired 762 227
Net cash outflow from acquisition of businesses (803) (1.773)
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23. Reconciliation to the cash flow statement

2018 2017

£000 £000
Profit {loss) for the year 1,424 (263)
Adjustments for
Tax 872 311
Finance costs 432 1,001
Amortisation of intangible assets 2,089 2,613
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 488 769
Deermed remuneration 1,678 1,420
Charge relating to the put and call option over Begbies Traynor (London) LLP i 758 335
Gain on acquisition (1,189) (351)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment —_ 13
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations — 594
Share-based payment expense 295 431
Operatng cash flows before movements in working capitai 6,907 6,873
(Increase) decrease In receivables (458) 3,179
Increase {decrease} in payables 2,742 (1,529)
Decrease in provisions {126) {549)
Cash generated by operations 9,065 7974

Cash and cash eguivalents {which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet) comprise cash at bank and
other short-term highly iguid investments with a maturity of three months or less

24. Contingent liabilities
The group had no matenial contingent iabilities at 3¢ Apnil 2018 or 30 Apnl 2017

25. Operating lease arrangements
The group as lessee

2018 2017
£000 £000
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 2,687 2,756

Al the balance sheet date, the group had cutstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating ieases, which fall due as follows

2018 207

£'¢00 £000

Within one year 2,105 1,821
In the second to fifth years inclusive 3,385 3,360
After frve years 105 526
5,595 5707

Operating lease payments prinapally represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, which have an average
duration of five years, together with operating leases for motor vehicles

The group as lessor
Rental incame earned during the year was £133,000 (2017 £133,000) At the baiance sheet date, the group had contracted with tenants

for the following future minimum lease payments

2018 017

£000 £:000

Within one year 161 161
In the second to fifth years inclusive 40 201
201 362
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25. Operating lease arrangements continued

The group as lessor continued
Operating lease income represents rental income recevabie by the group, which s commutted for the next year

26. Pensions
The group operates defined contribution pension schemes for all qualifying empioyees

The total cost charged to income of £1,203,000 (2017 £1,087,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by the group
As at 30 Apnil 2018, contnbutions of £113,000 {2017 £100,000) due 0 respect of the current year had not been paid over to the schemes

27. Related party transactions
Transactions betweaen the company and Its subsidiaries, which are related paruties, have been eliiminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note

Trading transactions
During the year the following transactions, all of which were on arm’s length terms and in the ordinary course of business, occurred
inwhich directors have an interest

various commeral propearties used by members of the group durning the year are owned or part owned by Ric Traynor ar his personal
pension fund Rent and service charges paid on those propertes by entities within the group in the year totalled £155,500 (2017 £720,500)
AL 30 April 2018 £nil (2017 £nil} was payable in respect of these transactions

One commercial property used by members of the group during the year 1s part owned by Mark Fry Rent and service charges paid on
this property by entitres within the group in the year totalled £85,000 (2017 £85,000) At 30 Aprd 2018 £nil (2017 £nil} was payable in
respect of this transaction Mark Fry also part owns a company which provides archiving facihties to entities within the group £24,000
{2017 £24,000) was paid by entities within the group for this service during the year At 30 Apnl 2018 £6,000 (2017 £6,000) was payable
in respect of this service

Ric Traynor purchased the controlling interest in Red Flag Alert LLP ('Red Flag'} from the group on 10 Aprid 2012, with the group
retaining a minority interest in the partnership The group continues to provide a number of central support services to Red Flag for
which £96,000 was payable by Red Flag during the vear (2017 £96,000) The group has negotiated an agreement to retain full access
to the database and joint marketing rights for the publication of Red Flag Alert quarterly statistics and was charged a fee of £150,000
for the year {2017 £150,000) Rent of £nil was paid to the group by Red Flag during the year (2017 £22,000) At 30 Apnil 2018 £201,0600
(2017 £140,000) was owed by Red Flag Alert LLP

Key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the group, 1s set out in the directors’ remuneration report
on page 14

28. Reserves
The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve withint owners’ equity
Share premium Amount subscribed for share capital (n excess of nominal value

Merger raserve Farmation of the group in 2004, and premium for shares 1ssued on acguisitions in accordance
with Companies Act requirements

Capital redemption reserve  Repurchase of own share capital
Translation reserve Exchange differences arising an the retranslation of reserves of foreign subsidianes

Retained earnings Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

29. Reconciliation of movement in net debt

Cash 2na cash hon-cureent

erpuvalents Lorrowings Met debt

£600 £000 £000
At 1 May 2017 6715 (12,000 (10,285)
Cash flows 2,041 — 2,047
Repayment of non-current borrowings {6,000} £,000 —
Net cash and cash equrvalents acquired (note 22) 762 — 762
At 30 April 2018 3,518 {11,000) (7.482)
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Company balance sheet
at 30 April 2018

2018 2017

Motes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investment in subsidianes 4 358,737 31,868
Current assets
Trade and other recelvables 5 31,381 33,207
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payables 6 {1,413) (434}
Net current assets 29,968 32,723
Total assets less current liabilities 65,705 64,581
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Trade and other payabies 5 (500) {71
Net assets 65,205 63,880
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 7 5,508 5,640
Share premium account 22,789 22,335
Merger reserve 20,248 18,507
Capital redempticn reserve 304 —
Profit and loss account 16,356 17,398
Shareheolders’ funds 65,205 63,880

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has elected not to present its own prefit and loss account for
the year Beghies Traynor Group plc reperted a profit for the financial year ended 30 April 2018 of £1,782,000(2017 £1,203,000)

The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group ple, registared number 5120843, were approved by the board of directors and
authorised for 1ssue on 9 July 2018 They were signed on its behalf by

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor
Executive chairman Group finance director
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Capital

Share Share Merger redemption Retained Total

cap\ta! remum reserve reserve BIrNICES equily

£000 £000 £'000 F'000 £000 £000

At 1 May 2016 as previously reported 5,611 23,042 17584 — 18,509 64,746
Restatement — (923) 923 — — —
At 1 May 2016 restated 5,611 22,119 18,5407 — 18,509 64,746
Profit for the year — — — — 1,203 1,203
Dividends — — — — {2,335) (2,335)
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments — — — — 21 21
Shares issued 29 216 — — — 245
AL 30 Apnl 2017 5,640 22,335 18,507 — 17398 63,880
Profit for the year — — — — 1,782 1,782
Daadends — — - — (2,356} (2,358)
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments — — — — & &
Own shares acquired m the year (304) — — 304 (226) (226)
Shares issued 172 454 1741 —_ (248) 2,119
At 30 April 2018 5,508 22,789 20,248 304 16,356 65,205
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Notes to the company financial statements
for the year ended 30 April 2018

1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the company have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
apphcable United Kingdom law and accounting standards

The principal accounting policies are summarised below They have all been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year

Investments
Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less provision for impairment The carrying value of fixed asset investments
are reviewed for impairment If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying valug may not be recoverable

Share-based payments

The fair value of services receved in exchange for the grant of options s recognised as an expense over the vesting period In accordance
with FRS 102 Options are valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model Further details are provided in note 21 of the
consolidated financial statements

Where shares are issued to employees of subsichanes, this s treated as part of the cost of investmentin that subsidiary

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of uncertainty

Inthe process of applying the company's accounting policies, the company s required to make certain estimates, judgements and assumptions
that it believes are reasonable based upen the information avallable These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets
and lizbihues at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods presented

On an ongoing basis, the company evaluates 1ts estimateas usmg historical experience, consultation with experts and other methods
considered reasonable in the particular crcumstances Actual results may differ from the estimates, the effect of which s recogrised
inthe period Inwhich the facts that give rise to the revision become known

The directors do not consider there to be any crical accounting judgements or key sources of uncertainty

FRS 102 exemption

Begbies Traynor Group plc meets the defimtion of a gualifying entity under FRS 102 and has therefore taken advantage of the disclosure
exemptions avallable to it respect of s separate financial statements Exemptions have been taken in these separate company financial
statements in relation to share-based payments, presentation of a cash flow statement and remuneration of key management personnel

The company’s shareholders have been notified in writing about the ntention to take advantage of the disclosure exemptions and no
objections have been receved

The company also intends to take advantage of these exemptions in the financiat statements to be ssued in the following year
Objections may be served on the company by its sharehclders

Reserves restatement
During the year the company reclassified the premium on shares issued as consideration for acquisitions from share premium to merger
reserve At 1 May 2016 the opening reserves adjustment between share premium and merger reserve was £923,000

There1s no impact on net assets, adiusted profit before tax, adjusted EPS or reported cashflows

2. Statement of compliance
The financial statements of Beghbies Traynor Group plc have been grepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reparting Standard 102, and the Companies Act 2006

The functional currency of the group is considered to be pounds steriing because this 1s the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates

3. Profit for the year
The company has no employees (2017 no employees)

The auditor's remuneration for audit and other services 1s disclosed in note 6 (0 the consolidated financial statements

4, Investment in subsidiaries

£'000
Cost and net book value
At 1 May 2016 31,338
Additions 530
AL 30 Apnil 2017 31,868
Additions 3,869
At 30 April 2018 35,737
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4. Investment in subsidiaries continued

The additions in the year relate to an increase N investment in Eddisons Commercial Holdings Limited resulting from an increase in the
estimated contingent consideration payable, shares 1ssued in relation to the conversion of ESS shares in the year, which are treated as
a capital contribution, and the acquisiion of Springboard Corporate Finance Limited

Detaits of subsidiary entities are set out below These undertakings are included in the consolidated group financial statements and are

100% controlled Companies are hsted under therr registered office

Subsidiary unaertaking

Nature of business

Codntry of Incorporat on

340 Deansgate, Manchester M3 4LY

Begbies Traynor Limited'

BTG Consulting Limited

Beghies Traynor international Limited”

Begbies Traynor {Central) LLP

Beghies Traynor (London) LLP

Begbies Traynor (SY) LLP

BTG Adwisory (CF) LLP

BTG Corporate Finance LLP

BTG Adwisory (Investigations) Limitad (formerly Begbies Traynor
(Investgations} Limited)

BTG Advisory LLP formerly BTG Financiat Consulting LLP)
BTG Globa!l Advisory Limited

BTG Corperate Sofutions Ltd

Hudson Traynor LLP

Springboard Corporate Finance Limited’

Insclvency Advice Limited!

Begbies Traynor Legal Services LLP

Beghies Traynaor (Isle of Man) Limited

BTG Tax LLP

BTG Risk LLP

Toronto Square, Toronto Street, Leeds L51 2H]
Eddisons Commercial (Holdings) Limited’

Eddisons Commercial Limited

Eddisons Commercial (Property Management) Limited
Eddisons Insurance Services Lirmited

Eddisons Holdings Limited

Pugh Auction Group Limited

Pugh Holdings Limited

Eddisons Trustee Company Limited

The London Sitver vaults and Chancery Lane Safe Deposit Company Limited
TBS&V Ltd

Pugh & Company Limited

CJM Asset Management Limited (formerly Fyrebrand Limited)
Philip Davies & Sons {Group) Limited

Taylors Business Surveyors and Vatuers Limited
Theaucuonpeople co Limied

c/o S&P Consulting S.L, Urb. Calypso, C.C. Valdepinas,
1y 3 A 29649 Mijas Costa, Malaga, Spain

Eddisons Spam 5L

c/o Schaffner & Orth, Kaiserhofstrasse 10,
60313 Frankfurt am Main, Deutschland

Eddisons Germany GmbH

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Busingss recovery
Business recovery
Business recovery
Corporate finance
Corporate finance

Investigation agency
Financial consulting
International network organisation
Business recovery
Business recovery
Corporate finance
Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Darmant

Property consultancy
Property consultancy
Property consultancy
Insurance brokerage
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Employee trust
Management company
Property consultancy
AUctioneers
Property consultancy
Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Faclities management

Facihties management

England and Wales
England and wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
Ergland and Walas
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

Isle of Man
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

Spain

Germany

1 Inrerest s cartrolled by s.nsidiary andertakings, excenst where markad wh ere sharas are held directly by Begbies Trayner Group ple
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4. Investment in subsidiaries continued
All shareholdings relate to ordinary shares

The directors of the company are of the opinion that the value of the investments in subsidharies, as underginned by their membership
benefits :in the operatng entities of the group, 15 not less than the cost of those Investments

The following subsidiary undertakings have claimed exemption from audit under section 4759A of the Companies Act 2006

Subsidiary urgertaking

BTG Corporate Finance LLP
BTG Advisory {Investigations) Limited (formerly Beglies Traynor (investigations) Limited}
BTG Adwvisory LLP (formerly BTG Finanaial Consulting LLP)

5. Trade and other receivables

2018 2017
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings 31,357 32,957
Other debtors 24 250
31,321 33,207
6. Trade and other payables
2018 2017
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Other creditors 1,413 ARA
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Other creditors 500 711

The company has na financial nstruments other than those shown as financial Labtlities above, all of which are gencminated in sterhing
The directors consider the farr values of the financial instruments approximate to their book values and that the main risk to the
company arising from financial instruments s interest rate risk, which 1s kept under review
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7. Share capital

2018 2017 2018 2017

thousand thousaric £000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5 pence
At 1 May 106,704 106,118 5,336 5,307
Staff SIP scheme 60 74 3 4
Issue of shares for share-tased payments 692 512 35 25
Consideration for acquisitions 2,671 — 134 —
At 30 Apri 110,127 106,704 5,508 5.336
Allotted, called up but not fully paid
A ordinary shares of 3 pence
At 1 May - 4,868 —_ 146
Conversion of shares — (4,868) —_ (146}
AL 30 April — — — —
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Deferred shares of 1 pence
At 1 May 30,378 15,774 304 158
Conversion of shares - 14,604 — 146
Cancellation of shares (30,378) — (304) —
At 30 April —_ 30,378 —_ 304
Issued share capital 110,127 137,082 5,508 5,640

Ordinary shares carry na nght to fixed income and each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the company

A ardinary shares have no nghts (o fixed income, dividends or voting rights at general meetings of the company The shares are only
transferable either pursuant to an offer required to be made by the City Code for the A ordinary shares or otherwise with prior written

consent of the company

Deferred shares have no nghts to fixed mcome, dividends or voting rights at general meetings of the company The shares are only

transferable with the consent of the company

During the year, 30,377,784 deferred shares were repurchased by the company for total consideration of £1 and cancelled, in
accordance with the resolution approved by shareholders at the annual general meeting In September 2017

The company has issued share options as set out In note 27 to the consolidated financal statements
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